
 

       
In-Person and Via Live Stream: Click Here   

Dial-In Live Stream: 312-626-6799; Webinar ID 867 2747 0792 Passcode: 554296 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 15, 2025 TAX LEVY PUBLIC HEARING 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE DECEMBER 15, 2025 REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: - emailed public comment can be sent to the village clerk at mroach@forestpark.net prior 

to 6:30 p.m. the day of the meeting 
COMMUNICATIONS:   

 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS:  

1. Fire Department: October-December 2025 
 

BILLS BY RESOLUTION 
  
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  
 
NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Ordinance waiving bid, ratifying and authorizing the acceptance of a Quote from MES, Inc. for the purchase 
of SCBA Pack 

2. Ordinance authorizing the sale or disposition of surplus property of the Village of Forest Park – 
Four (4) Parking Payboxes 

3. Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Request for Proposals for Residential Municipal Waste, Recycling 
and Landscape Waste Collection Services  

4. Resolution approving and ratifying the execution of a COPS Hiring Grant with the DOJ 
 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS   

ADJOURNMENT 

 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, January 12, 2026   
Lower Level of Village Hall 

7:00 PM 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86727470792?pwd=yu8WpQQCsivwu4c1bFTUfB0SclxFnO.1
mailto:mroach@forestpark.net


PUBLIC HEARING TO APPROVE A PROPOSED  
PROPERTY TAX LEVY INCREASE FOR THE  

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 FOR 2025 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING DECEMBER 15, 2025 
 
 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
 

Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered 
the Roll Call.     
 
Mayor Hoskins called the public hearing to order at 6:45 p.m. and stated that the purpose 
of the hearing was to receive public comments regarding the proposed tax levy ordinance 
for 2025. 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 

None. 
 

 
 

 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero motioned to 
adjourn the hearing.  Commissioner Maxham seconded the motion.  The motion carried.  
Mayor Hoskins declared the hearing adjourned at 6:57 P.M. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Megan Roach 
Deputy Village Clerk 

 



THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 
VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, DECEMBER 15, 2025 
 
 

Mayor Hoskins led all assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance at 7:04 p.m.  
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.   
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by Commissioner Nero that the minutes 
from the November 24, 2025, Regular Meeting of the Village Council be approved. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Eboni Nicki Smith addressed the Council regarding the success of the Memorial Park Spartans 
Cheer squad. Members of the Spartans were present, and the Mayor and Commissioners 
congratulated them on their success at the National competition. 
Sam Rabe spoke regarding the denial of the business application for MeGarage Inc. and requested 
that the application be reconsidered. Mr. Rabe stated that MeGarage provides rage room 
experiences intended to offer a controlled environment for the release of stress, frustration, and 
emotional expression in support of mental health and well-being.. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
None 
 
APPROVAL OF BILLS: 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution for the payment of bills 
be adopted.  The bills totaled $1,576,962.65. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously 

 
 

R-124-25 
APPROVAL OF BILLS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,576,962.65 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Presentation by the Forest Park Arts Alliance 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Annual Tax Levy Ordinance of the 
Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois for the fiscal year 
beginning May 1, 2025, and ending April 30, 2026 be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins  
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution directing the County 
Clerk to calculate separate limiting rates for the Tax Levy of 
the Village of Forest Park, Illinois for the 2025 Tax Levy Year 
be adopted. 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins  
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Ordinance amending Section 
8-1-1, entitled “Building Codes Adoption,” of the Municipal 
Code be tabled until the January 26, 2026 Council meeting for 
further review. 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd 

and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: Nero 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O-51-25 
ANNUAL TAX LEVY 

ORDINANCE 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-125-25 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING 

COUNTY CLERK TO 
CALCULATE SEPARATE 

LIMITING RATES FOR THE 
TAX LEVY 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Ordinance waiving bid, approving 
and authorizing the execution of a maintenance agreement 
with SEPS for Police Department Uninterrupted Power Supply 
be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving and 
directing the Village Engineer to prepare and submit a pre-
application for MWRDGC partnership program be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving 2026 
agreement with Endeavor Edward Occ Health for substance 
abuse random management program be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution authorizing and 
directing the transfer of funds from Roosevelt/Hannah TIF to 
the Roosevelt Corridor TIF be adopted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

O-52-25 
ORDINANCE APPROVING 
AGREEMENT WITH SEPS 

FOR UPS POLICE 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

R-126-25 
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING PRE 
APPLICATION MWRDGC 

PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
APPROVED  

 
 

 
 

 
 

R-127-25 
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING PRE 
APPLICATION MWRDGC 

PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R-128-25 
RESOLUTION 

AUTHORZING TIF FUNDS 
TO ROOSEVLET 

CORRIDOR 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 



 4 

ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero that the Resolution approving 2026 
Paratransit Service Provider Agreement between PACE and 
the Village be adopted. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd and Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Melin-Rogovin and seconded 
by Commissioner Voogd that the Resolution approving pay 
request #9 for AMI water meters to Veregy LLC be adopted. 
 
Roll Call: 
AYES: Commissioner Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd, Mayor Hoskins. 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
It was moved by Commissioner Maxham and seconded by 
Commissioner Nero to approve the Raffle License for the 
Community Toy Drive on December 17, 2025/ 
 
Roll Call: 
AYES: Commissioner Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, 

Voogd, Mayor Hoskins 
NAYES: None 
ABSENT: None 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

R-129-25 
REOLUTION APPROVING 

PACE AGREEMENT 
APPROVED 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

R-130-25 
RESOLUTION APPROVING 

PAY #9 TO VEREGY 
APPROVED 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

RAFFLE LICENSE FOR 
COMMUNITY CENTER 

APPROVED 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT: 
 
Village Administrator Entler congratulated Fenwick High School on its State Championship victory, noting that 
several Forest Park residents are members of the team. She extended holiday wishes to the community, 
wishing everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy Chanukah. Administrator Entler stated that although the 
zoning ordinance did not pass at this meeting, she requested that the Commissioners review the memorandum 
over the coming weeks and forward any questions to her. She advised that the item will be brought back for 
consideration at the January 26, 2026 meeting. 
 
COMMISSIONER’S REPORTS: 
 
Commissioner Maxham stated that she found the zoning memorandum to be informative, well written, and 
thoughtful. She thanked the Police and Fire Departments for their efforts in ensuring the safety of all attendees 
during the Holiday Walk. She also thanked Sal Stella and the Public Works Department for their work in 
making the event safe and successful, and thanked Department Head Glinke for inspecting the sidewalks in 
advance of the Holiday Walk. Commissioner Maxham wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
Commissioner Nero stated that he would like the zoning matter to be brought back before the Council and 
thanked staff and the Building Department for their work on the zoning review. He stated that the zoning 
memorandum clearly outlines what the Village needs to accomplish and expressed his belief that the zoning 
regulations should be modernized. Commissioner Nero noted that updating the zoning code would support 
increased housing opportunities and promote economic development, and he expressed his appreciation for 
the continued efforts of staff on this initiative. 
 
Commissioner Melin-Rogovin thanked everyone who attended and participated in Operation Rising Spirit, 
including scouts, students, the Library, and local businesses, noting that together they wrote more than 1,100 
holiday cards for veterans. She also thanked the Chamber of Commerce and the Village’s first responders for 
their continued service to the community. Commissioner Melin-Rogovin expressed her appreciation for the 
Menorah lighting held in Constitution Court and stated that the Safety and Traffic Commission continues its 
work with a focus on safe streets. She announced that she was selected to participate in the Illinois Women’s 
Institute for Leadership Training Academy, an eight-month program that includes multi-day sessions across 
Illinois and in Washington, D.C., focused on leadership development, communications strategy, fundraising, 
and networking. She stated that she looks forward to bringing the knowledge and resources gained through the 
program back to the Village of Forest Park. 
 
Commissioner Voogd spoke about zoning and stated that she is not opposed to updates to the zoning code 
but would like more information before moving forward. She said it is important to understand how the 
proposed changes align with the Village’s Comprehensive Plan and whether there are any conflicts. 
Commissioner Voogd suggested holding a public town hall so residents can ask questions, particularly 
regarding density and stormwater management, and emphasized the importance of transparency, community 
outreach, and sharing information with the public. She thanked the many volunteers who serve the Village, 
including the Arts Alliance, the Historical Society, the Park District, and members of the various Village boards, 
as well as the Police and Fire Departments. She also thanked Sal Stella and the Public Works Department for 
their work throughout the year. 
 
Mayor Hoskins thanked everyone who attended the Holiday Walk and gave special recognition to the Police 
and Fire Departments for helping make the event safe and enjoyable for all. He reminded residents of the 
upcoming Menorah lighting on December 16 and the Community Toy Drive scheduled for December 17. He 
wished everyone a happy holiday season and apologized for the technical issue that resulted in the meeting 
not being recorded. 

  
 
 
 
 
 



 6 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
There being no further business to be addressed, Commissioner Nero moved, and Commissioner Maxham 
seconded to adjourn into closed session at 8:18 p.m. The motion carried.  
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 

Megan Roach 
Deputy Village Clerk 



Forest Park
Fire Department

 October 2025 
 Report



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

9

16

14
13 13 13

8

12

27

17

15
14 14

9

12 12

8

17

12

19

12

8

19

14

9 9

22

10

18

22

12

Calls Per Day October 2025
426 Total

PAST YEARS’ CALL VOLUME FOR OCTOBER
 2023- 443
 2024- 365



Fire EMS & Rescue Hazardous Condition

Service Call Good Intent False Call

EMS & Rescue
257

Service Call
75

Good Intent
70

False Call
14

Hazardous Condition
3

 426 Total Calls
for October 2025



EMS Aid Received
75

Fire Aid Given
28

EMS Aid Given
11

Fire Aid Received
3

Aid Given or Received by Neighboring
Fire Departments

Call Clusters in October 
There were 74 occurrences where 2-5 incidents were

happening at the same time.



Inspections Commercial Residential

Inspection

Re-inspection

Training On-Shift Hours Off-Shift Hours

Vehicle Extrication 6

Vertical Ventilation 13

Forcible Entry 1

Hydrants 10

Basic Firefighting Topics 4

Ground Ladders 1.5



Misc. Activities Admin (Hours) Shift Members (Hours)

Metro Chiefs Meeting 2

Division 11 Chiefs
Meeting

2

Illinois Fire Chiefs
Conference

20

First Aid Casket Races 3

Betsy Ross Community
Event

1

Station Rehab Meeting 4

New CAD meetings 4

Data Entry 5 17

Scheduling 10



Structure Fires:
10/02/25 Forest Park Small Porch Fire

10/02/25 Forest Park Fire in Light Fixture
10/11/25 Oak Park Structure Fire

10/28/25 Oak Park Garage Fire

Vehicle Extrication Training
Vehicle extrication training is essential because traffic collisions can turn
brutal in seconds, and our crews need to move fast. Modern vehicles are

built stronger, equipped with high-voltage systems, and filled with structural
complexities that can trap patients in ways not seen a decade ago. Effective
extrication isn’t about cutting metal—it’s about controlling the scene so the
patient reaches definitive care within the trauma’s Golden Hour. That hour is

the critical window where rapid intervention & medical care mean the
difference between life and death. Regular hands-on training keeps our

firefighters sharp, efficient, and ready to act when every minute matters.



Vertical Ventilation
TrainingVertical ventilation is one of those skills

where hesitation or sloppy technique can
make a bad situation worse, fast.

Whether it’s a flat or a pitched roof,
crews need to be confident in reading

building conditions, moving with
purpose, and cutting clean, effective

openings that release heat and smoke
without compromising safety. Every roof
type behaves differently under fire, and

the only way to stay sharp is through
realistic, repetitive training. Solid

ventilation work improves visibility,
lowers temperatures, and buys precious

time for interior crews and trapped
occupants. It’s a high-risk, high-reward

operation that demands constant
practice to execute safely and

effectively.



Betsy Ross Visit

Casket Races

Visit to Springfield to advocate
for the Fire Department.

Firefighters Memorial



Forest Park
Fire Department

 November 2025 
 Report



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29
0

5

10

15

20

15

17

13

7

9

15

13

14

11

13

14

12

13

11

18

10 10

15

10

12

8

15

6

18

13

7

12 12

14

10

Calls Per Day November 2025
371 Total

PAST YEARS’ CALL VOLUME FOR November
 2023- 388
 2024- 350



Fire EMS & Rescue Hazardous Condition

Service Call Good Intent False Call

EMS & Rescue
226

Good Intent
62

Service Call
46

False Call
22

Fire
8

Hazardous Condition
7

 Total Calls
for November 2025



EMS Aid Received
90

Fire Aid Given
17

EMS Aid Given
16

Fire Aid Received
3

Aid Given or Received by
Neighboring Fire Departments

Call Clusters in November 
There were 71 occurrences in which 2-3

incidents occurred at the same time.



Inspections Commercial Residential

Completed 1 3

In-progress 1 1

Training On-Shift Hours Off-Shift Hours

EMS Continuing Education 9

Pediatric Code Simulator 2

Ropes and Knots 3.5

SCBA Consumption Drill 6

Live Fire Training 9

TRT 4



Misc. Activities Admin (Hours) Shift Members (Hours)

FD Strategic Goals Meeting 2

Division 11 Chiefs
Meeting

2

EOP Planning 1

Metro Chiefs Meeting 2

Cook County Emergency
Management Summit

8

PMSA Yearly Meeting 1

Grant White EOP Meeting 1

Data Entry 18

Scheduling 12



 Fire Incidents:

11/02/25 Oak Park Garage Fire
11/02/25 Oak Park Furnace Fire

11/10/25 River Forest Furnace Fire
11/20/25 Forest Park Stove Fire

11/21/25 Forest Park Vehicle Fire
11/26/25 Forest Park Trash Fire
11/27/25 Forest Park Leaf Fire

11/28/25 Forest Park Porch Fire



Pediatric emergencies don’t happen often in Forest
Park, but when they do, they demand absolute

precision. Doctors from Lurie Children’s Hospital spent
the day running our paramedics through advanced

pediatric code simulations—high-acuity, low-occurrence
scenarios that challenge even seasoned crews. Their

guidance sharpened critical skills, reinforced best
practices, and strengthened our readiness for some of

the most emotionally charged calls we face. This
collaboration helps ensure that our department is

prepared to deliver the highest level of care when our
youngest and most vulnerable patients need it most.



Division 10 invited the Forest
Park Fire Chief to participate in

a live-fire training event,
providing a chance to work

alongside neighboring
departments in a realistic,

high-heat environment. She
assisted in both the command

role and interior safety,
supporting crews as they

advanced lines, searched for
victims, managed fire behavior,
and refined their tactics under

live conditions. These joint
trainings strengthen

operational coordination
across departments and keep
everyone sharper for the real

thing.



Forest Park
Fire Department

 December 2025 
 Report



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29
0

5

10

15

20

25

19

9

12

9

17

12

14

18

12

16 16

11

9 9

11

24

17

10

12

11

18

14

10

9 9

11

7

17

7

14

10

Calls Per Day December 2025
 394 Total

PAST YEARS’ CALL VOLUME FOR DECEMBER
 2023- 368
 2024- 378



Fire EMS & Rescue Hazardous Condition

Service Call Good Intent False Call

EMS & Rescue
272

Service Call
41

Good Intent
33

False Call
30

Hazardous Condition
13

Fire
5

 394 Total Calls
for December 2025



EMS Aid Received
60

Fire Aid Given
15

Fire Aid Received
3

EMS Aid Given
2

Aid Given or Received by
Neighboring Fire Departments

Call Clusters in December 
There were 63 occurrences in which 2-4

incidents occurred at the same time.



Inspections Commercial Residential

Completed

In-progress

Training On-Shift Hours Off-Shift Hours

Bloodborne Pathogens 5

Hazmat Awareness 8

Lockout/ Tagout 7

Map Exam 1

SCBA Training 4

Technical Rescue 6 4



Misc. Activities Admin (Hours) Shift Members (Hours)

Proviso Chiefs meeting
with Speaker Welch

2

Division 11 Chiefs
Luncheon

2

Chamber Holiday Lunch 1

Metro Chiefs Meeting 2

Firefighter Graduation 2

Pierce Tour 16 16

Meetings 5 4

Data Entry 3 17

Scheduling 4 20

December Training Focus
December is used to complete mandatory training that could
not be finished earlier in the year due to call volume, staffing

shortages, and scheduled time off. Firefighters are required to
complete a significant amount of ongoing training to maintain
certifications and operational competency. As an all-hazards
response department, the Forest Park Fire Department must

remain prepared for a wide range of incidents, and this annual
training ensures members remain current, capable, and

compliant with required standards.



Drew Clift graduated from the
NIPSTA Fire Academy

Proviso Township Fire Chiefs
met with Speaker Chris Welch



FF Hannan, LT Reid,
Deputy Chief Maylath,

and Chief Hankus
toured the Pierce Fire

Apparatus Facility 



R E S O L U T I O N  No.

               BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, 
that we dispense with the reading of the individual bills inasmuch as each department head has approved
and signed bills in the following aggregate amount for their respective departments.

Refunds and Allocations 300.00             
Public Affairs 49,603.65        
Police Department 7,076.45          
Community Center 2,015.28          
Accounts & Finance (Clerks Office) 474,398.43      
Accounts & Finance (Fire Department) 171,220.60      
Department of Health & Safety 3,692.72          
Streets and Public Improvements 94,323.22        
Public Property 69,402.48        
Seizure 2,347.45          
Federal Customs 7,811.86          
TIF 13,753.80        
VIP 43,353.46        
Water Department 138,037.10      

TOTAL 1,077,336.50$ 

  ADOPTED BY THE Council of the Village of Forest Park this 12th Day of January 2026

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

___________________________
Rory Hoskins, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Megan Roach, Deputy Clerk



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-4230-135 Ed Canedo 09/11/2025 300.00                

Refunds and Allocations 300.00                



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 1,383.90             
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 2,952.74             
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 294.00                
100-10-101-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 1,218.00             
100-10-101-6120-305  34  Publishing Inc 12/22/2025 3,200.00             
100-10-101-6120-305 Corey Thomas 12/10/2025 425.00                
100-10-101-6120-305  Forest Park Chamber of Commerce 12/10/2025 270.00                
100-10-101-6120-305  Village of Oak Park 12/11/2025 4,470.94             
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 235.64                
100-10-101-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 42.43                  
100-10-101-6150-202  Woodlake Occupational Health 12/01/2025 761.00                
100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 11/30/2025 495.00                
100-10-101-6150-220 Anastasie M. Senat 11/30/2025 330.00                
100-10-101-6150-222  American Legal Publishing 12/10/2025 500.00                
100-11-111-6100-115  Alliance Pension Consultants LLC 11/30/2025 9,425.00             
100-11-111-6100-115  Alliance Pension Consultants LLC 11/30/2025 5,150.00             
100-11-111-6100-115  Alliance Pension Consultants LLC 11/30/2025 6,750.00             
100-11-111-6110-110  Proxit Technology Solutions Inc 12/11/2025 6,300.00             
100-11-111-6110-110  Proxit Technology Solutions Inc 12/11/2025 5,400.00             

Public Affairs 49,603.65           



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-12-121-6120-305 Tom McNamara 11/27/2025 63.00                  
100-12-121-6120-305 Tom McNamara 12/22/2025 154.00                
100-12-123-6145-202  T-Mobile USA Inc 11/11/2025 50.00                  
100-12-123-6145-202  T-Mobile USA Inc 11/11/2025 150.00                
100-12-124-6150-114  Thomson Reuters-West 12/01/2025 578.41                
100-12-124-6150-114  Critical Reach Inc 12/03/2025 640.00                
100-12-125-6145-204  DACRA Adjudication System 11/30/2025 5,401.00             
100-12-126-6145-126  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 40.04                  

Police Department 7,076.45             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-15-154-6170-105  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 15.28                  
100-15-169-6810-125  Lauterbach & Amen LLP 12/15/2025 2,000.00             

Community Center 2,015.28             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-00-000-1201-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 12/10/2025 122,709.63         
100-00-000-1201-001  Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust 12/10/2025 65,905.88           
100-21-211-5005-030 Samantha Bahena 12/22/2025 1,008.88             
100-21-211-6100-150  Allied Benefit Systems 12/29/2025 177.00                
100-21-211-6100-150  Allied Benefit Systems 12/29/2025 750.00                
100-21-211-6110-110  Gordon Flesch Co Inc 12/05/2025 36.30                  
100-21-211-6140-104 Megan Roach 12/09/2025 135.65                
100-21-211-6140-104  Quill 12/04/2025 39.35                  
100-21-211-6150-112  Municipal Clerks of Illinois 12/19/2025 65.00                  
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 12/15/2025 1,066.52             
100-21-211-6150-150  AT&T 12/15/2025 717.30                
100-21-211-6160-001  Alliant Insurance Services Inc - 8377 12/11/2025 10,212.00           
100-22-221-6310-410  Fire Service Inc 12/11/2025 267,375.00         
100-22-221-6310-410  PremiStar-North 12/02/2025 1,699.92             
100-22-221-6320-930  FOP Lodge #24 12/09/2025 2,500.00             

Accounts and Finance (Clerks Office) 474,398.43         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-30-301-6100-170  IL Dept of Healthcare and Family Services - GEMT 11/17/2025 168,048.90         
100-30-301-6150-114  Illinois Fire Chiefs Assoc 12/16/2025 450.00                
100-30-301-7000-040 Mark Maylath 12/03/2025 75.31                  
100-30-302-6110-150  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 138.19                
100-30-302-6110-200  American Test Center Inc 12/08/2025 630.00                
100-30-302-6110-200  Grainger Inc. 11/24/2025 145.50                
100-30-302-6145-100  Air One Equipment Inc 12/04/2025 277.00                
100-30-302-6145-105 Mitchell Kempka 12/07/2025 203.50                
100-30-302-6145-306  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 44.97                  
100-30-302-6145-321  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 40.02                  
100-30-302-6145-323  Health Endeavors SC 12/04/2025 481.00                
100-30-302-6150-122 Kevin Kraus 12/16/2025 463.05                
100-30-303-6145-300  Henry Schein 12/05/2025 31.22                  
100-30-303-6145-300  Henry Schein 12/10/2025 191.94                

Accounts and Finance (Fire Department) 171,220.60         



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-40-401-5000-017 Raymond Traynor 12/16/2025 855.00                
100-40-402-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 1,081.50             
100-40-402-6100-115 Courtney Kashima 11/30/2025 375.00                
100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 245.00                
100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 245.00                
100-40-402-6141-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 735.00                
100-40-403-6150-230  Elevator Inspection Services 12/08/2025 80.00                  
100-40-410-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 58.23                  
100-40-410-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 17.99                  

Department of Health and Safety 3,692.72             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-50-502-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 258.66                
100-50-502-6140-202  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 51.73                  
100-50-502-6185-106  Morton Salt Inc (MSI) 12/08/2025 4,886.43             
100-50-502-6185-106  RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT 12/08/2025 907.50                
100-50-502-6185-110  Voss Signs LLC 12/17/2025 720.00                
100-50-502-6185-112  Republic Services #551 12/15/2025 2,379.52             
100-50-502-6185-501  Republic Services #551 12/15/2025 47,126.10           
100-50-502-6185-502  Republic Services #551 12/15/2025 33,314.23           
100-50-502-6185-503  Republic Services #551 12/15/2025 4,679.05             

Streets and Public Improvements 94,323.22           



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 32.19                  
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 186.90                
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 31.74                  
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 613.86                
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 521.91                
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 37.18                  
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/02/2025 31.36                  
100-55-553-6180-160  Com Ed 12/03/2025 45.01                  
100-55-570-6155-101  Mohr Oil Company 12/12/2025 10,472.92           
100-55-570-6155-106  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 18.43                  
100-55-570-6155-106  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 17.52                  
100-55-570-6155-106  AM Auto Glass & Windows 12/09/2025 360.00                
100-55-570-6155-106  Atlas Bobcat LLC 12/08/2025 237.52                
100-55-570-6155-106  Atlas Bobcat LLC 12/10/2025 300.68                
100-55-570-6155-106  Currie Motors Chevrolet 11/11/2025 26.25                  
100-55-570-6155-106  Factory Motor Parts Co 12/04/2025 242.82                
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 12/23/2025 310.65                
100-55-570-6155-106  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 12/23/2025 323.66                
100-55-570-6155-106  Terminal Supply Co 12/08/2025 228.51                
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 11/01/2025 45.02                  
100-55-570-6155-106  Zeigler Ford North Riverside 12/10/2025 100.80                
100-55-570-6155-110  Snap on Industrial 12/02/2025 65.17                  
100-55-570-6155-112  BC Body Craft Inc 12/03/2025 1,172.32             
100-55-570-6155-112  Cummins Inc 12/09/2025 53,280.04           
100-55-570-6155-112  NOBS TOWING 12/17/2025 375.00                
100-55-580-6155-120  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 16.19                  
100-55-580-6155-120  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 9.88                    
100-55-580-6180-302  RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT 12/10/2025 298.95                

Public Property 69,402.48           



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

230-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 196.95                
230-00-000-6900-230  BC Body Craft Inc 10/30/2025 2,150.50             

Seizure 2,347.45             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

232-00-000-6900-231  CDS Office Technologies 12/15/2025 624.89                
232-00-000-6900-231  College of Du Page 11/20/2025 5,165.00             
232-00-000-6900-231 Dan Miller 12/09/2025 38.46                  
232-00-000-6900-231 Dora Murphy 11/21/2025 168.79                
232-00-000-6900-231  Eagle Uniform Company Inc 11/26/2025 102.00                
232-00-000-6900-231  J.G. Uniforms 12/10/2025 76.00                  
232-00-000-6900-231 Motorola Solutions StarCom21Network 12/01/2025 120.00                
232-00-000-6900-231  North East Multi-Reg Training 01/16/2025 350.00                
232-00-000-6900-231 Ray O'Herron Co Inc 11/26/2025 7.13                    
232-00-000-6900-231 Alyssa Murphy 12/08/2025 70.00                  
232-00-000-6900-231 Joe Schick 12/03/2025 100.00                
232-00-000-6900-231  TKK Electronics LLC 10/03/2025 989.59                

Federal Customs 7,811.86             



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

304-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 1,617.00             
304-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 315.00                
304-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 12/05/2025 7,150.00             
304-00-000-6185-700 The Printing Store 12/22/2025 2,804.00             
304-00-000-6185-700  Sternberg Lanterns Inc 12/18/2025 660.00                
309-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 840.30                
309-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 367.50                

TIF 13,753.80           



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

312-00-000-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 1,706.25             
312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 175.00                
312-00-000-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 2,325.81             
312-00-000-6150-152  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 74.02                  
312-00-000-6180-114  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 145.22                
312-00-000-6180-114  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 54.85                  
312-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 12/11/2025 2,045.00             
312-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 12/11/2025 4,260.00             
312-00-000-6180-114  McAdam Landscaping 12/18/2025 1,735.00             
312-00-000-6180-200  Comcast 12/08/2025 200.21                
312-00-000-6180-200  PremiStar-North 12/23/2025 537.00                
312-00-000-6180-200  PremiStar-North 12/29/2025 795.56                
312-00-000-6180-210  Comcast 12/12/2025 2.31                    
312-00-000-6180-220  Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. 12/11/2025 99.72                  
312-00-000-6180-220  Midwest Air Pro Inc. 11/26/2025 9,418.97             
312-00-000-6180-220 Tim Stefl Inc 12/02/2025 146.25                
312-00-000-6180-240  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 65.19                  
312-00-000-6180-240  Comcast 12/07/2025 2.31                    
312-00-000-6180-240  Westchester Lock & Key Service Inc 12/29/2026 239.00                
312-00-000-6180-260  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 39.54                  
312-00-000-7000-130 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 9,248.75             
312-00-000-7000-130 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 2,140.00             
312-00-000-7000-312 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 7,897.50             

VIP 43,353.46           



Account Number Vendor Invoice Date Amount

501-00-000-2001-002  Pacific Construction 12/30/2025 1,833.57             
501-80-800-6100-100  Storino Ramello & Durkin 11/30/2025 2,535.75             
501-80-800-6100-105 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 490.00                
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 36.01                  
501-80-800-6110-105  Verizon Wireless 12/22/2025 36.01                  
501-80-800-6150-112  Illinois Public Works Mutual Aid Network 12/03/2025 100.00                
501-80-800-6150-152 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 34,472.83           
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 12/02/2025 133.79                
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 12/02/2025 27.85                  
501-80-800-6150-154  Com Ed 12/03/2025 238.53                
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 12/02/2025 2,354.64             
501-80-800-6150-154  Constellation Energy Services Inc 12/04/2025 322.84                
501-80-800-6150-156  NICOR 12/04/2025 132.77                
501-80-800-6150-156  NICOR 12/04/2025 425.55                
501-80-800-6155-110  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 11/30/2025 18.13                  
501-80-800-6155-110  NOBS TOWING 12/11/2025 275.00                
501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 08/04/2025 247.50                
501-80-800-6800-111  Suburban Laboratories Inc 11/04/2025 705.00                
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 12/10/2025 4,935.76             
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 12/10/2025 6,879.02             
501-80-800-6800-151  Centurion Plumbing Company 12/10/2025 5,846.80             
501-80-800-6800-153  Comcast 12/06/2025 98.65                  
501-80-800-6800-153  CDC ENTERPRISES INC 12/11/2025 2,200.00             
501-80-800-6800-155  SCHAUERS HARDWARE 10/31/2025 40.48                  
501-80-800-7000-003 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 19,392.50           
501-80-800-7000-006 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 38,752.50           
501-80-800-7000-006 Christopher Burke Engineering LTD 12/04/2025 11,035.00           
501-80-800-7000-006  Chicago Tribune Media Group 11/17/2025 2,106.62             
501-80-800-7000-006  Core & Main LP 12/17/2025 2,364.00             

Water Department 138,037.10         







1351570.1 

ORDINANCE NO. O-______________-26 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING BID, RATIFYING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
ACCEPTANCE OF A QUOTE FROM MES, INC. FOR THE PURCHASE  

OF NEW SELF-CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS (“SCBA PACKS”)   
FOR THE VILLAGE’S FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code of the Village of Forest Park authorizes 

the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) to waive, by fourth-fifths vote 

of the corporate authorities, the competitive bidding requirements of the Village Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village find it advisable, necessary and in the 

best interest of the public to waive the competitive bidding requirements of Section 1-8A-5A of 

the Village Code and approve and authorize the acceptance of a quote from MES, Inc. for SCBA 

Packs for the Village’s Fire Department (“Quote”).  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the Village 

of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are 

found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Ordinance. 

 Section 2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1-8A-5A of the Village Code, the 

corporate authorities hereby waive advertising for competitive bids and approve and authorize the 

Village Administrator’s execution of the Agreement with MES for the acceptance of the Quote 

and purchase of the SCBA Packs, a copy of which quote is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made 

a part hereof. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



1351570.1 

 Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption as provided 

by law. 

 PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 12th day 

of January, 2026. 

 
AYES:         
 
NAYS:         
 
ABSENT:         
 
        APPROVED: 
 
 

______________________________ 
        Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 

 
 

  



1351570.1 

EXHIBIT A 
QUOTE 

 



1351570.1 

 Office of the 
Fire Chief 

Memo  
To: Forest Park Village Council 

From: Chief Lindsey Hankus 

Date: 12/11/2025 

Re: Request for Approval to Purchase SCBA Air Packs 

I am requesting approval to purchase new self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) 
air packs for the Forest Park Fire Department. Funding for this replacement was 
included in the current budget, and the equipment is needed due to safety concerns, 
outdated NFPA compliance, and failures within the existing SCBA packs.  I am including 
the quote from MES, the 3M Scott distributor.  

Please let me know if any additional information is needed. 

Thank you 

 



VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
ORDINANCE NO. O -  - 26 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSITION OF 
SURPLUS PROPERTY OF THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois as follows: 
 

Section 1: Pursuant to Section 11-76-4 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11- 
76-4, the corporate authorities of the Village find that four (4) municipal parking payboxes (located 
at 420 Hannah Ave; 412 Ferdinand Ave; 418 Circle Ave; and 420 Beloit) are no longer necessary, 
or useful to, or for the best interests of the Village, and further find that it is in the best interest 
of the Village to dispose of said property. 

 
Section 2:  The corporate authorities hereby authorize the Village Administrator to  sell 

or otherwise dispose of four (4) municipal parking payboxes (located at 420 Hannah Ave; 412 
Ferdinand Ave; 418 Circle Ave; and 420 Beloit). 

 
The Village Administrator is authorized to sell such items at a public or private sale, or 

otherwise dispose of such property, in the discretion of the Village Administrator. The Village 
Administrator shall, in her discretion, determine a minimum price for such items, if such items 
are to be sold. 

 
Section 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval and publication in accordance with the applicable law. 
 

PASSED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 12th  
day of January, 2026. 

 
AYES:   

 

NAYS:   
 

ABSENT:    
 
APPROVED by me this 12th  day of January, 2026. 

 
 
 
 

Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

     Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 



 

1351565-1 

 RESOLUTION NO. R-__________-26 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A REQUEST 

FOR PROPOSALS FOR RESIDENTIAL MUNICIPAL WASTE, 
RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES 

FOR THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 
 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village of Forest Park (the “Village”) find it 

necessary and desirable to issue a request for proposals and to seek responses from qualified 

companies for residential municipal waste, recycling and landscape waste collection services 

within the Village (the “RFP”).  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Village Council of the 

Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The corporate authorities of the Village hereby authorize and direct the 

Village Administrator to compile, formulate and issue an RFP, for residential municipal waste, 

recycling and landscape waste collection services within the Village 

 Section 2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval as required by law. 

ADOPTED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois this 12th 
day of January, 2026. 

 
AYES:  ___________________ 
NAYS:  ___________________ 
ABSENT:  _________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 12th day of January, 2026. 
             
       ___________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this ______ day of January, 2026. 
 
________________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  



 

1351565-1 



 

788315.1  

 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLABLES AND 

LANDSCAPE WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES 

 
THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, ILLINOIS 

 
ISSUED: JANUARY 13, 2026 

 
PROPOSALS DUE: FEBRUARY 3, 2026 

3:00 P.M. 
(DRAFT FOR REVIEW) 

 



i  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Section Page 
 

A. Overview ........................................................................................................................... 1 

 1. Request for Proposal ................................................................................................. 1 

 2. Proposal Delivery Procedures.................................................................................... 1 

 3. Withdrawals; Declinations .......................................................................................... 1 

 4. Competency of Contractors ....................................................................................... 1 

 5. Questions .................................................................................................................. 2 

 6. RFP Package ............................................................................................................ 2 

 7. Investigation by Potential Contractor.......................................................................... 2 

 8. Checklist of Submittals .............................................................................................. 2 

 9. Statement of Certification ........................................................................................... 3 

 10. Draft Collection Agreement ........................................................................................ 3 

 11. Rejection; Waivers ..................................................................................................... 3 

 12. Proposal Security....................................................................................................... 3 

B. General Instructions......................................................................................................... 4 

 1. RFP Package ............................................................................................................ 4 

 2. Format for Submissions ............................................................................................. 4 

 3. Minimum Scope of Services; Deviations .................................................................... 5 

 4. Examination of Service Area ...................................................................................... 6 

 5. Use of Village’s Name ............................................................................................... 6 

 6. Evaluation Criteria ..................................................................................................... 6 

 7. Time Schedule ........................................................................................................... 6 

C. General Scope of Services .............................................................................................. 7 

 1. Purpose of this Section .............................................................................................. 7 

 2. Background ............................................................................................................... 7 

 3. Summary of Current Collection Program ................................................................... 7 

 4. Summary of New Collection Program ........................................................................ 9 

 5. Contractor’s Responsibilities .................................................................................... 10 

 6. Duration of Agreement ............................................................................................. 11 

 7. Public Education ...................................................................................................... 11 

 8. Contractor Transition ............................................................................................... 11 

 9. Payment .................................................................................................................. 11 

 10. Local Improvements ................................................................................................ 11 

 11. Performance Bonds and Insurance .......................................................................... 11 
 
  



ii  

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont’d.) 
 
Tables Page 
 

Table 1 Residential Units in Village ........................................................................................ 7 
 
Appendices 
Appendix A Pricing Forms 
Appendix B Contractor Certification Form 
Appendix C Proposal Submittal Checklist 
Appendix D Draft Agreement 
Appendix E Village Service Area Map 
Appendix F Condominium Buildings 
 
 



1  

SECTION A. OVERVIEW 
 
1. Request for Proposal 
 
The Village of Forest Park, Illinois (hereinafter known as the “Village”) is requesting proposals 
from qualified firms to provide professional services including residential Municipal Waste, 
Recyclable Material and Landscape Waste collection services. The Village is furnishing herein a 
scope of services by which such proposals shall be considered. Any firm (hereinafter "Contractor") 
desiring to furnish a quotation for such services shall submit proposals following the instructions 
and format of this Request for Proposal (RFP). The contract will be offered for a five-year initial 
term, commencing on May 1, 2026, with potentially one extension period of one to three years. 
Contractors should note that the Village participates in the Regional Disposal Project (RDP) 
administered by the West Cook County Solid Waste Agency (WCCSWA); all Municipal Waste 
(but not Recyclable Material or Landscape Waste) collected in the Village must be delivered to 
an authorized RDP transfer station as further described in Section C of this RFP. 
 
2. Proposal Delivery Procedures 
 
Sealed proposals shall be delivered to the Village Administrator, Village of Forest Park, 
517 Des Plaines Avenue, Forest Park, IL 60130 by no later than 3:00 P.M. on Tuesday, 
February 3, 2026. Sealed envelopes should be clearly labeled "Proposal for Municipal Waste, 
Recyclables and Landscape Waste Collection Services," and include the Contractor's name. One 
original and three (3) photocopies of the Proposal shall be furnished, along with one electronic 
copy (in .pdf format). If sent by mail, the sealed envelope containing the proposals must be 
enclosed in another envelope addressed to the Village at the location stated in this paragraph. 
 
Proposals received prior to the time of opening will be securely kept, unopened. No responsibility 
shall be attached to the Village for the premature or non-opening of a Proposal not properly 
addressed and identified. 
 
Proposals arriving after the above specified time, whether sent by mail, courier or in person, shall 
not be accepted. These proposals will either be refused or returned unopened. It is the 
Contractor's responsibility for timely delivery regardless of the method used. Mailed proposals 
which are delivered after the specified time will not be accepted regardless of the postmarked 
date or time on the envelope. 
 
Facsimile ("fax") machine transmitted proposals shall not be accepted, nor will the Village transmit 
the RFP documents to prospective Contractors by way of a facsimile machine. 
 
3. Withdrawals; Declinations 
 
If a Contractor wishes to withdraw a Proposal, the Contractor shall submit written notification of 
such action to the Administrator no later than the due date and time as specified in Section A-2. 
Potential Contractors that decline to submit a Proposal are requested to so notify the Village in 
writing. 
 
4. Competency of Contractors 
 
The Village reserves the right to determine the competence and financial and operational capacity 
of any Contractor. Upon request of the Village, the Contractor shall furnish additional evidence as 
may be required by the Village (beyond that which is required in response to this RFP) to evaluate 



2  

its ability and resources to accomplish the work required by the scope of services herein. The 
Village shall unequivocally be the sole and final judge of such competency, and its decision shall 
be final and not subject to recourse by any person, firm or corporation. 
 
5. Questions 
 
Any questions or exceptions pertaining to the RFP should be directed in writing to the attention 
of: 
 

Rachell Entler 
Village Administrator 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
Forest Park, IL 60130 
Email: rentler@forestpark.net 

 
The written questions and exceptions, along with the Village’s responses, shall be circulated to 
potential Contractors without identifying the party submitting the questions. Vendors are 
requested to submit questions or exceptions as early as possible in order to facilitate preparation 
of any addenda. The cut-off for receipt of questions or exceptions shall be 5:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, January 20, 2026. Replies and/or addenda will be emailed to all known potential 
Contractors by 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 27, 2026. Receipt of any addenda must be 
acknowledged in writing as part of the Proposal. The Village shall not assume responsibility for 
the receipt by the Contractor of any addenda. 
 
6. RFP Package 
 
Each potential Contractor is instructed to check its RFP package to ensure that it has received a 
complete document, which consists of the sections and attachments identified in the Table of 
Contents. 
 
7. Investigation by Potential Contractor 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to thoroughly read and understand the information, 
instructions, and scope of services contained in this RFP. Contractors are expected to fully inform 
themselves as to the conditions and requirements of the services to be provided. Failure to do so 
is at the Contractor's own risk. No plea of error or plea of ignorance by the Contractor of conditions 
that exist or that may hereafter exist as a result of failure or omission on the part of the Contractor 
to make the necessary examinations and investigations will be accepted as a basis for varying 
the requirements of the Village. The Village will assume that submission of a Proposal means that 
the Contractor has familiarized itself with the conditions and requirements and intends to comply 
with them unless specifically noted otherwise. 
 
8. Checklist of Submittals 
 
The checklist of submittals (refer to Appendix C) is furnished only to help the Contractor ensure 
that a complete Proposal is submitted. It is not a substitute for the careful reading of and 
response to all of the RFP documents. 
  



3  

9. Statement of Certification 
 
A statement of certification (Appendix B) must be signed and submitted in order for a Proposal to 
be considered. It is necessary that this be done under oath; therefore, this form must be notarized. 
 
10. Draft Collection Agreement 
 
A draft collection Agreement (“Agreement”) for Municipal Waste, Recycling and Landscape Waste 
Collection Services is attached to this RFP (Appendix D). The draft Agreement represents the 
minimum contractual terms desired by the Village. Contractors are strongly encouraged to submit 
proposals that adhere to the terms of the draft Agreement and must identify any proposed 
changes to the draft Agreement in their proposals. The Village reserves the right to consider such 
proposed changes in evaluating proposals, and to negotiate the terms and conditions of the final 
Agreement. 
 
11. Rejection; Waivers 
 
The Village reserves the right to reject any and all proposals; waive formalities, technical 
requirements and/or deficiencies and irregularities; solicit new proposals; or further negotiate with 
the Contractor(s) of its choice if some other manner of negotiation better serves the Village's 
interests under the RFP and the collection Agreement. The Village reserves the right to award 
the Proposal to the Contractor which, in the Village's judgment, best serves the needs and 
interests of the Village and its residents. 
 
12. Proposal Security 
 
Each Proposal shall be accompanied by a Proposal security, which shall be in the form of a bid 
bond or a certified check or a bank cashier's check in the amount of Five Thousand Dollars 
($5,000.00) made payable to the Village. Proposals submitted without the required security shall 
be rejected. 
 
After formal written notification by the Village that a contract award decision has been made, the 
Proposal security of the successful Contractor shall be forfeited to the Village in the event that the 
Contractor shall withdraw its Proposal, or neglect or refuse to enter into a Municipal Waste, 
Recycling and Landscape Waste Services Agreement and provide the required performance 
bond, and the Contractor shall be liable for any damages the Village may thereby suffer. 
 
Proposal securities shall be released as follows: 
 

(a) The successful Contractor's security shall be retained until the Municipal Waste, 
Recycling and Landscape Waste Services Agreement has been signed and the 
required performance bond and Certificates of Insurance have been furnished. 

 
(b) All other securities shall be released upon selection of the top ranked Contractor. 

 
  



4  

SECTION B. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS 
 
1. RFP Package 
 
All sections of this RFP package (including appendices) are integral to the desired scope of 
services, and quotations shall take into account the comprehensive nature of the work. It is 
intended that the scope of services in this RFP shall become part of a written and signed 
Agreement for services. The Village reserves the right to further negotiate the terms of any 
agreement to provide all or part of the services contained in this RFP. 
 
2. Format for Submissions 
 
A properly prepared Proposal shall consist of the following: 
 

 A signed cover letter on the Contractor’s letterhead that commits the Contractor, if 
selected, to carrying out all the provisions of the Proposal. The signed cover letter must 
be from an officer or employee having the authority to bind the Contractor by signature, 
and should acknowledge the receipt of any addenda to the RFP. 

 
 Statement of Qualifications. A narrative discussion of the Contractor’s qualifications. The 

length of this discussion will be at the Contractor’s discretion, but should address the 
following: 

 

− Description of Contractor’s business (e.g., number of years in business and services 
provided). 

 

− A list of areas or municipalities in the Chicago metropolitan area for which the 
Contractor furnishes similar services. Provide three (3) customer references. 

 

− Key personnel and points of contact for performance of the services. Contractors 
should also provide an overall staffing plan to assure the availability of drivers and 
other personnel to perform the collection services throughout the term of the 
Agreement without disruption of service or undue customer complaints. 

 
 Work Plan. A narrative discussion of the Contractor’s approach to the work, demonstrating 

its understanding of the Village’s requested services. The length of this discussion will be 
at the Contractor’s discretion, but should address the following: 

 

− A narrative description of how the Contractor proposes to provide the basic collection 
services included in the Village’s scope of services (Base Proposal, refer to Section 
C). 

 

− A description of the equipment that will be used to service the Village. 
 

− A transition plan describing how the Contractor, if awarded the work, will assure the 
orderly transition of services with a minimum of service complaints from residents of 
the Village. At a minimum, the transition plan should address the following: provision 
of sufficient collection vehicles; delivery of carts to residential units and timing of 
delivery; customer service capabilities; public outreach and communication (e.g., 
mailers, web page, etc.); and, coordination with the Village during transition. The 



5  

transition plan should also provide a schedule of when such activities would occur 
prior to the May 1, 2026 start of services. 

 

− A discussion of any Contractor proposed alternatives to the scope of services 
contained in the RFP. The narrative should provide sufficient detail for the Village to 
evaluate the proposed alternative(s). 

 
 A narrative discussion detailing any exceptions to the terms and conditions contained in 

the draft Agreement for services (refer to Appendix D). Contractors may alternatively 
attach a marked-up version of the draft Agreement, fully annotating any proposed 
modifications. 

 
 Price quotation sheets (refer to Appendix A). 

 
 Signed and notarized certification form (refer to Appendix B) 

 
 Proposal security (refer to Section A.12) 

 
Failure to submit all of the required information may result in the disqualification of the Contractor 
from consideration. Contractors may be asked to give an oral presentation of their Proposal at a 
later date. 
 
All price quotation sheets must be correctly filled in, using ink or entered in typed form. Any 
erasure or error corrections must be initialed in ink. All forms requiring signatures must be properly 
signed in ink in the proper spaces. If the Contractor is unable to provide a quotation on a given 
service alternative, each relevant item on the price quotation sheets must have the words "No 
quotation" entered thereupon. 
 
3. Minimum Scope of Services; Deviations 
 
The scope of services included in this RFP package describes the services which the Village feels 
are necessary to meet the performance requirements of the Village and shall be considered the 
minimum standards expected of the Contractor. Contractors may indicate alternatives to the 
scope of services if the proposed changes are equal to or greater than what is required by this 
RFP. All alternatives shall be separately listed, and an explanation shall be provided for such 
alternatives. 
 
If the Contractor is unable to meet any part of the requested scope of services contained herein, 
it shall also separately list all requested deviations and provide a justification for such deviations. 
 
If a Contractor does not indicate alternatives to or deviations from the scope of services, the 
Village shall assume that the Contractor shall fully comply with them. The Village shall be the sole 
and final judge of compliance with the scope of services. 
 
The Village further reserves the right to determine the acceptability or unacceptability of any and 
all alternatives and deviations, and to negotiate the effects and costs of any portion of a submitted 
Proposal including any alternatives and deviations contained therein prior to reaching a decision 
on the awarding of an Agreement for services. The Village shall unequivocally be the sole and 
final judge as to whether any alternative or deviation is of an equivalent or better quality of service. 
This decision is final and shall not be subject to recourse by any person, firm, or corporation. 



6  

 
4. Examination of Service Area 
 
Contractors shall completely inform themselves of all the conditions under which service is to be 
performed, the service area, and all other relevant matters pertaining to the provision of services 
including, but not limited to, roads, collection points, collection procedures required, labor 
required, hours of operation, and all other factors which would affect execution and completion of 
the work covered by this RFP. 
 
5. Use of Village's Name 
 
Proposers or the selected Contractor are specifically denied the right of using, in any form or 
medium, the name of Village of Forest Park for public advertising (other than responding to this 
RFP or identifying the Village as a customer of the Contractor), unless express written permission 
is granted by the Administrator of the Village. Requests shall be made through the Administrator’s 
Office. 
 
6. Evaluation Criteria 
 
Village staff will evaluate proposals with regard to qualifications and experience, ability to provide 
services within the identified time schedule, transition plan, equipment, services offered, support 
of the Village's mission, deviations to the scope of services, exceptions to the terms and 
conditions of the draft Agreement, and cost of services. The Village reserves the right to reject 
any and all proposals or to waive any irregularities or deviations in any Proposal if judged to be 
in the best interest of the Village. All variations, deviations and substitutions proposed by the 
Contractor must be clearly annotated within its Proposal. The selected Contractor will have 
submitted the Proposal that is in the best interest of the Village. If a Proposal does not satisfy the 
minimum requirements as set forth in this RFP, the Proposal may be disqualified from further 
consideration at the discretion of the Village. The Village may interview proposers as part of its 
evaluation process. 
 
7. Time Schedule: 
 
The Village expects to adhere to the following time schedule: 
 
Issue RFP ..................................................................... Tuesday, January 13, 2026 
Deadline for receipt of questions ................................... Tuesday, January 20, 2026, 5:00 p.m. 
Village response/addenda to be sent by ........................ Tuesday, January 27, 2026, 5:00 p.m. 
Proposal due date ......................................................... Tuesday, February 3, 2026, 3:00 p.m. 
Interviews/negotiations/award of proposal .....................  February 2026 
Transition period ........................................................... March 2026 – April 2026 
Commencement of services .......................................... May 1, 2026 
 
  



7  

SECTION C. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
1. Purpose of this Section 
 
This Section presents background information on the Village and a summary of the scope of 
services to be provided by the Contractor. This information is intended to facilitate preparation of 
Contractor proposals. This summary is not intended to serve as a full and complete description 
of the scope of services and should be read in conjunction with the draft Agreement for services 
(Appendix D). It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to thoroughly read and understand 
the information and instructions contained in the RFP and appendices. 
 
2. Background 
 
The service area of the Village is depicted on the map in Appendix E. The Village is comprised of 
approximately 5,281 total units, of which 3,815 are classified as “Residential Units” (units in 
structures of 1-4 units) and 1,466 are classified as “Condominium Family Units” (units in structures 
of 5+ units). Refer to Table 1 (and definitions in the draft Agreement in Appendix D). A list of the 
buildings comprising Condominium Family Units is provided in Appendix F. 
 

TABLE 1.  RESIDENTIAL UNITS IN VILLAGE 

Type of Unit # Properties # Units (approximate) 

Residential Unit (1-4 units)   

  Single-Family 1,956 1,956 

  Duplex 598 1,196 

  Triplex 141 423 

  Quad 60 240 

    Subtotal 2,755 3,815 

Condominium Family Unit 82 1,466 

    Total in Village 2,837 5,281 

 
3. Summary of Current Collection Program 
 
Residential Unit Service (1-4 units) 
 
Residential Units currently receive collection service on Thursday (south of Madison Street) and 
Friday (north of Madison Street) as shown on the map in Appendix D. Condominium Family Unit 
buildings receive collection service at least one time per week (although collection days may 
vary). 
 
Residential Units receive once per week Municipal Waste (trash) collection in 96-gallon Mobile 
Carts (owned by the Contractor). The Village’s program is a “take-all” program. Residents may 
set out additional trash that does not fit in the Mobile Cart, provided the trash is in rigid cans or 
plastic bags (not exceeding 35-gallons or 50 pounds in weight). Residents are also allowed to set 
out up to three (3) cubic yards of Bulk Items per week (e.g., discarded furniture, mattresses, small 
amounts of construction and demolition debris).  
 



8  

White Goods and larger quantities (> 3 cubic yards) of construction and demolition debris require 
a special pickup to be arranged by the resident and Contractor. Special pick-ups are paid by the 
Residential Unit direct to the Contractor. 
 
Residential Units receive once per week collection of Recyclable Material in 64-gallon Mobile 
Carts (owned by the Contractor). Recyclable Material is collected on the same day as Municipal 
Waste. 
 
The collection season for Landscape Waste runs from April 1 to November 30. Residential Units 
are allowed to set out unlimited quantities of Landscape Waste in Kraft paper bags or 30-gallon 
rigid containers. Landscape Waste is collected on the same day as Municipal Waste and 
Recyclable Material. 
 
A subscription-based Organic Materials collection option is also offered to Residential Units using 
96-gallon Mobile Carts (owned by the Contractor). Residential Units subscribing to this service 
are allowed to commingle food waste and Landscape Waste in the Contractor-provided Mobile 
Cart. The season for this service also runs from April 1 to November 30. All arrangements for this 
subscription program are made between the Residential Unit and the Contractor, and all fees for 
the service are paid by the Residential Unit to the Contractor. 
 
With the exception of special pick-ups and the subscription Organic Materials collection service, 
all fees are billed by the Contractor to the Village. 
 
The current cost of Municipal Waste collection is $9.97/unit/month, which is for collection only and 
transport to a Regional Disposal Project (RDP) transfer station. The Village pays for all RDP 
disposal fees once the Municipal Waste is delivered to the designated transfer station. The two 
approved RDP transfer stations are: 
 
 Groot (Elk Grove)    Groot (McCook) 
 1759 N. Elmhurst Road   8475 W. 53rd Street 
 Elk Grove Village, IL 60007   McCook, IL 60525 
 
The current cost of Recyclable Material collection is $6.71/unit/month. This includes the cost of 
collection and processing the Recyclable Material at a Contractor-selected recycling facility.  
 
The current cost of Landscape Waste collection is $1.71/property/month. Note that this is the 
monthly fee per property, not per unit (e.g., a duplex is charged as one property and not as two 
units). This includes the cost of collection and disposing the Landscape Waste at a Contractor-
selected compost facility. 
 
The current cost for the subscription-based Organic Materials collection program is $122.90 per 
subscriber per year. The current cost for special collections of Municipal Waste is $23.32 per 
cubic yard. Note again these fees are paid by the requesting Residential Unit to the Contractor. 
 
Condominium Family Units 
 
For Condominium Family Unit properties, the Contractor provides an adequate number of 
dumpster containers for Municipal Waste and 96-gallon Mobile Carts for Recyclable Materials. 
The Contractor must also provide each Condominium Family Unit with an indoor recycling 
container suitable for storage under kitchen sinks. Landscape Waste collection service is not 
provided to condominium properties under the Village’s contract.  



9  

 
The current cost of Municipal Waste collection is $6.24/unit/month, which is for collection only and 
transport to a Regional Disposal Project (RDP) transfer station. The Village pays for all RDP 
disposal fees once the Municipal Waste is delivered to the designated transfer station. 
 
The current cost of Recyclable Material collection is $5.32/unit/month. This includes the cost of 
collection and processing the Recyclable Material at a Contractor-selected recycling facility. 
 
Other Services 
 
In addition to the above basic services, the current collection agreement includes the following 
additional services at no additional cost (unless otherwise noted): 
 

 Collection of Municipal Waste and Recyclable Material from five (5) municipal buildings 
(refer to Appendix D, Attachment A). 

 
 Collection of Municipal Waste and Recyclable Material from four (4) Village-sponsored 

events. 
 

 Provision of emergency services at the request of the Village, up to $3,000 per year. 
 

 Provision of roll-off dumpster service to the Public Works Department. The Village pays a 
“per haul” cost to the Contractor for each roll-off container ordered, as well as RDP 
disposal costs. 

 
4. Summary of New Collection Program 
 
As part of this Request for Proposal process, the Village is requesting Contractors to provide 
pricing information for a Base Proposal as further described below. The Base Proposal is 
substantially similar to the current collection program described in Section C.3 above. Contractors 
can also propose alternates not contained in the RFP, provided such alternates meet the 
minimum standards of the Base Proposal and are described in detail in the Contractor’s proposal 
and pricing is provided. 
 
Base Proposal.  
 
The scope of the new collection agreement is summarized below (refer to draft Agreement for 
services in Appendix D): 
 

 Provide weekly collection and transport of unlimited Municipal Waste; weekly collection, 
transport and processing of Recyclable Material; and weekly transport and processing of 
unlimited Landscape Waste to all covered Residential Units. Collection services to be 
performed on Thursday (south of Madison Street) and Friday (north of Madison Street). 
Contractor to provide each Residential Unit with a 96-gallon Mobile Cart for Municipal 
Waste and a 64-gallon Mobile Cart for Recyclable Material. Residential Units may place 
three (3) cubic yards per week of Bulk Items outside the 96-gallon Mobile Cart. 
 

 At the request of a Residential Unit, provide a special pick-up for Bulk Items exceeding 
three (3) cubic yards, or for White Goods. 

 
 Provide a minimum of once per week collection of Municipal Waste and Recyclable 



10  

Material to all covered Condominium Family Units. Contractor to provide an adequate 
number of dumpster containers for Municipal Waste and 96-gallon Mobile Carts for 
Recyclable Material to each condominium property. Contractor shall also provide to each 
Condominium Family Unit an indoor recyclables container suitable for storage under 
kitchen sinks. 

 
 All Municipal Waste to be transported to a designated RDP transfer station as identified in 

Section C.3 above. The Village will pay all RDP disposal fees. 
 

 Offer a subscription-based Organic Materials collection option to Residential Units, 
including a 96-gallon Mobile Cart. All fees for this service shall be billed directly by the 
Contractor to the subscribing Residential Unit. 

 

 At no additional cost to the Village, provide collection of Municipal Waste and Recyclable 
Material from the five (5) municipal buildings identified in Attachment A to Appendix D. 

 

 At no additional cost to the Village, provide collection of Municipal Waste and Recyclable 
Material from four (4) Village-sponsored festivals each year as requested by the Village. 

 

 At no additional cost to the Village, provide up to $3,000 per year in emergency services 
as requested by the Village. 

 

 Provide roll-off dumpster service as requested by the Village, such services to be invoiced 
on a “per pull” basis. 

 

 Provide a monthly report to the Village of the quantities of Municipal Waste, Recyclable 
Material and Landscape Waste to the Village as specified in the draft Agreement in 
Appendix D. 

 

 Provide an itemized monthly invoice to the Village for all collection services performed 
under the collection Agreement. 

 

 Comply with all requirements of the draft collection Agreement (refer to Appendix D). 
 

The Village currently sponsors a one-week drop-off event for residents to recycle electronic waste. 
The Village has potential interest in curbside collection of electronic items. Contractors that can 
provide a curbside collection program for electronics are encouraged to provide details and pricing 
in their proposals. 
 
5. Contractor’s Responsibilities 
 
The Contractor shall provide and furnish all of the labor, materials, necessary tools, expendable 
equipment and supplies, vehicles, transportation services and processing/disposal services 
required to perform and complete the collection and transport of Municipal Waste to the RDP 
transfer station designated by the Village; the collection and processing of Recyclable Material; 
and, the collection and processing of Landscape Waste. 
 
It is the Village's intention to obtain throughout the term of any future collection Agreement a 
clean, courteous, well-scheduled and well-executed program for the collection and 
processing/disposal of Municipal Waste, Recyclable Material and Landscape Waste. 
 



11  

6. Duration of Agreement 
 
The new collection Agreement is offered for a five-year term, with services commencing on May 1, 
2026 and continuing through April 30, 2031. The Agreement may be extended for an additional 
one to three year period pursuant to the extension provisions in the draft Agreement (refer to 
Appendix D). 
 
7. Public Education 
 
The selected Contractor will be responsible for developing and distributing a service brochure to 
Residential Units in a manner acceptable to the Village. The brochure will detail the services 
provided to the residents through Contractor. Whenever there is a change in the service or 
programs provided, including permanent changes in regularly scheduled collection times, a 
service brochure shall be issued. The brochure shall include a toll‐free telephone number of the 
Contractor to be used for customer service. 
 
8. Contractor Transition 
 
Should the Village choose a different contractor at the expiration of the collection Agreement, the 
Contractor shall agree to cooperate with the chosen contractor in effecting an orderly transition, 
including removal of the Contractor’s carts. 
 
9. Payment 
 
Contractor shall submit monthly invoices to the Village except for services billed directly to 
Residential Units (special pickups and subscription-based Organic Materials collection). 
 
10. Local Improvements 
 
The Village reserves the right to construct any improvement or to permit any construction in any 
road, which may have the effect for a time of preventing the Contractor from traveling its 
accustomed route or routes for collection. The Contractor shall, however, by a method acceptable 
to the Village, continue to collect the Municipal Waste, Recyclable Material and Landscape Waste 
to the same extent as though no interference existed upon the roads formerly traversed. This shall 
be done at no extra cost to the Village. The Village agrees to notify and work with the Contractor 
to resolve any problems due to construction activity. 
 
11. Performance Bonds and Insurance 
 
The successful Contractor shall furnish to the Village a Performance Bond in favor of the Village, 
specified by name, in the amount of One Hundred and Twenty Thousand Dollars ($120,000.00) 
for the services rendered in conjunction with the Contract, said Performance Bond to be executed 
by a responsible surety company. The Performance Bond guaranteeing performance shall remain 
in effect for the term of the Contract and shall be delivered upon contract execution. A new 
Performance Bond shall be delivered to the Village at least one (1) month prior to the expiration 
date of an existing bond. 
 
The Contractor shall also maintain insurance in the types and amounts specified in the draft 
collection Agreement (refer to Appendix D). 
 
 



 

APPENDIX A. PRICING FORMS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 



 

APPENDIX A. PRICING FORMS (BASE PROPOSAL) 
 
 
Contractors shall submit pricing for the following services for each year of the contract term in accordance 
with the Scope of Services for the Base Proposal contained in Section C.4 of the RFP and the terms and 
conditions of the draft Agreement in Appendix D. 
 
 

BASE PROPOSAL 

 
Year 1 

5/1/26 – 4/30/27 
Year 2 

5/1/27 – 4/30/28 
Year 3 

5/1/28 – 4/30/29 
Year 4 

5/1/29 – 4/30/30 
Year 5 

5/1/30 – 4/30/31 

Residential Units (1-4 units) 

Municipal Waste: 96-gal Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Recyclable Material: 64-gal Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Landscape Waste 
(monthly rate per property) 

     

Additional 64-Gallon Trash Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Additional 96-Gallon Trash Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Subscription Organics Cart* 
(annual rate per unit) 

     

Special Collection Pick-up* 
(rate per cubic yard) 

     

White Goods* 
(each) 

     

Condominium Family Units 

Municipal Waste: Dumpsters 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Recyclable Material: 96-gal Carts 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Other Services 

Roll-offs (20 cu yd) 
(price per haul) 

     

Emergency Services 
(hourly rate) 

     

Notes: 
1. * Special Collection Pick-up, White Goods and Subscription Organic Materials Collection fees to be billed by Contractor to 

resident. 
2. Landscape Waste is monthly rate per property (e.g., duplex charged as one property and not two units). Monthly rate is charged 

to Village year-round. 
3. All Municipal Waste monthly fees are for collection and transport (only) to a designated RDP transfer station. Village will pay 

RDP disposal costs. 
4. Roll-off service to be quoted as price per haul to a designated RDP transfer station. Village will pay RDP disposal costs. 
3. Emergency Services is hourly rate charged by Contractor after $3,000 annual free allotment exceeded. 

 
 
 



 

APPENDIX B. CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION FORM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 

 
 



B-1  

APPENDIX B - CERTIFICATION FORM 
 
The undersigned, being an authorized representative of the Contractor, hereby certifies that the 

Contractor is not barred from submitting a Proposal for this contract as a result of a violation of 

30 ILCS 505/10.1 and 10.2 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes concerning proposal rigging, rotating, 

kickbacks, bribery, and interference with public contracts. 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is not delinquent in the payment of any tax 

administered by the State of Illinois Department of Revenue, unless the amount and/or liability is 

being properly contested in accordance with the procedures established by the appropriate 

revenue act. 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor is in compliance with Title 7 of the 1964 Civil 

Rights Act as amended and the Illinois Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/1-101, et seq.), as 

amended, under Compliance with Laws in Special Conditions. 

 
The undersigned, having 25 or more employees, does hereby certify pursuant  to section 3 of the 

Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/3) that it shall provide a drug-free workplace for all 

employees engaged in the performance of work under the contract by complying with the 

requirements of the Illinois Drug-Free Workplace Act and, further certifies, that it is not ineligible 

for award of this contract by reason of debarment for a violation of the Illinois Drug-Free 

Workplace Act. 

 
The undersigned, does hereby certify pursuant to Section 2-105 of the Illinois Human Rights Act 

(775 ILCS 5/2-105) that it has a written sexual harassment policy that includes, at a minimum, the 

following information: (i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment 

under State law; (iii) a description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) an internal 

complaint process including penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process 

available through the Department of Human Rights and Human Rights Commission; (vi) direction 

on how to contact  the  Department  of  Human  Rights  and  Human  Rights  Commission; and 

protection against retaliation. 

 
The undersigned hereby certifies that the Contractor shall comply with all local, state and federal 

safety standards. 

 
The undersigned hereby also certifies that this Proposal is genuine and not collusive or sham; 

that said Contractor has not colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with 

any other Contractor or person, to put in a sham Proposal, or to refrain from submitting a Proposal; 

and has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion, or 

communication or conference with any person, to fix the proposed price elements of said 

Proposal, or that of any other Contractor, or to secure any advantage against any other Contractor 

or any person interested in the proposed contract. 

  



B-2  

Printed Name:  

Title:  

Signature:  

 
 
 
 
Notary public: 
 
Subscribed and sworn before me this _______________ day of _______________, 2026. 
 

Signature:  

 
 
 
Seal: 
 
 



 

APPENDIX C. PROPOSAL CHECKLIST 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

APPENDIX C. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 
 
 
 Cover Letter 

 
 Contractor’s Statement of Qualifications 

 
 Contractor’s Work Plan 

 
 Contractor’s Proposed Exceptions to Draft Collection Agreement 

 
 Proposal Pricing Forms 

 
 Certification Form (signed and notarized) 

 
 Proposal Security ($5,000 Bid Bond or Certified/Cashier’s Check) 

 

 



 

APPENDIX D. DRAFT AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

AGREEMENT FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES (DRAFT) 

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement") made and entered into this _____ day of ___________, 
202___, by and between the following parties: the Village of Forest Park, a municipal corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “Village”), and 
______________________________, a corporation authorized to do business in the State of Illinois 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”): 

W I T N E S S E T H  

WHEREAS, the Legislature has expressly authorized the exercise of the powers herein, 
pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-19-1), which provides that corporate authorities 
may make contracts for the collection and final disposal of garbage, refuse and ashes; and 

WHEREAS, the Village, being desirous of arranging for the disposal of its municipal waste, 
separate from the services rendered by the Contractor; and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has submitted a proposal for the services desired by the Village; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Contractor acknowledges that the Village has historically provided for the 
collection of municipal waste as defined herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions shall apply: 

A. Agreement: Agreement shall mean and refer to this contract. 

B. Approved Municipal Waste Container: For Municipal Waste collection, an approved 
container shall mean a Contractor-supplied Mobile Cart, a Garbage Can or Garbage 
Bag, as defined in this section below or disposable container weighing no more than 
fifty (50) pounds suitable for loading into the Contactor's equipment without ripping 
or tearing, which contains all the waste to be removed. 

C. Bulk Items: Any item of Municipal Waste, as defined herein, which is not able to be 
adequately reduced to fit in a Village approved Municipal Waste container, such as 
discarded furniture, fixtures, and small amounts of construction or demolition debris 
and which can be legally accepted by the disposal site to which it is transported. 

D. Condominium Family Unit: Shall mean and refer to any residential family units 
located in condominium structures or complexes and which are located within the 
corporate limits of the Village. 

 



2 
 

E. Contractor: Contractor shall mean and refer to person or entity identified above. 

F. Electronic Waste: Shall mean computer, computer monitor, television, printer, 
electronic keyboard, facsimile machine, videocassette recorder, portable digital music 
player that has memory capability and is battery powered, digital video disc player, 
video game console, electronic mouse, scanner, digital converter box, cable receiver, 
satellite receiver, digital video disc recorder, or small-scale server sold at retail as 
defined in 415 ILCS 151/1-5. 

G. Garbage Can: A plastic or galvanized metal can with a capacity of not less than fifteen 
(15) gallons and not to exceed thirty five (35) gallons in size. No Garbage Can shall 
exceed fifty (50) pounds in weight. All Garbage cans shall have two handles. 

H. Garbage Bag: A disposable heavy-duty plastic bag of no less than 15 gallons and not 
to exceed 35 gallons. All garbage cans shall be tightly sealed. No garbage bag shall 
exceed 50 pounds in weight. 

I. Hazardous Waste: Shall mean and refer to a waste or combination of wastes which, 
because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious 
characteristics, may cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an 
increase in serious, irreversible or incapacitating reversible illness; or pose a 
substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the environment when 
improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of, or otherwise managed or which 
has been identified, by characteristics or listing, as being hazardous or having such 
impacts pursuant to Section 3001 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 
1976 (P.L. 94-580), pursuant to Pollution Control Board, Federal Regulations or other 
applicable laws, ordinances or regulations. 

J. Landscape Waste: All accumulations of grass, leaves, and other materials accumulated 
as the result of the care of lawns which are generated by a Residential Unit.  

K. Mobile Cart: A water tight plastic container that has an attached lid and wheels, with 
a capacity of no more than 96-gallons, to be supplied by the Contractor exclusively. 

L. Municipal Waste: May sometimes be referred to as Municipal Solid Waste and shall 
mean and refer to all waste, as defined by Section 3.290 of the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.290, which is not Hazardous and other discarded or 
abandoned material including, without limitation, garbage, rubbish, Bulk Items and 
small amounts of building materials and construction or demolition debris, or other 
similar waste otherwise generated by Residential Units or Condominium Family Units 
or collected pursuant to nonreimbursable services required under this Agreement. 
Municipal Waste shall not include Unacceptable Waste, Recyclable Materials, White 
Goods and Landscape Waste. 

M. Organic Materials. Shall mean food waste excluding shellfish, fish, meat and bones, 
and Landscape Waste. 

N. Recyclable Material: Shall mean and refer to those materials specified in this 
Agreement which are to be collected for recycling or reuse and which are generated 
by Residential Units or Condominium Family Units. 



3 
 

O. Residential Property: Shall mean and refer to only single family residential structures 
and any multiple family structure of up to and including four Residential Units and 
which is located within the corporate limits of the Village. 

P. Residential Unit: Shall mean and refer to only single family residential structures and 
any Residential Unit located in a multiple family structure of up to and including four 
units and which is located within the corporate limits of the Village. 

Q. Special Waste: Special waste shall mean potentially infectious medical waste, 
industrial process waste, pollution control waste as defined in 415 ILCS 5/3.475. 

R. Village: Shall mean and refer to the Village of Forest Park, an Illinois municipal 
corporation. 

S. Unacceptable Waste: Highly flammable substances, Electronic Waste, Hazardous 
Waste, liquid wastes, Special Wastes, certain pathological and biological wastes, 
explosives, toxic materials, radioactive materials, material that is not accepted at a 
facility designated by the West Cook County Solid Waste Agency; and other materials 
deemed by state, federal or local law, or in the reasonable discretion of the Contractor, 
to be dangerous or threatening to health or the environment, or which cannot be legally 
accepted at the designated disposal site. 

T. White Goods: Shall include all ranges, refrigerators, water heaters, freezers, air 
conditioners, humidifiers, other similar domestic and commercial large appliances and 
other items required by law to be treated or processed prior to disposal which are 
discarded by the resident of a Residential Unit or Condominium Family Unit. 

II. GENERAL 

A. The Village hereby grants to the Contractor the right, privilege and license for the 
collection and transportation (but not the transfer or disposal) of Municipal Waste; the 
collection, transportation, disposal (including processing or treatment prior to disposal 
as required by law) of White Goods; the collection, transportation, treatment and/or 
disposal of Landscape Waste; and the collection, transportation, processing and 

marketing of all Recyclable Materials when residents in Residential Units and 
Condominium Family Units set such waste and other materials out for collection by 
the Village, during the term of and in accordance with the provisions contained in this 
Agreement, commencing on May 1, 2026 until and through April 30, 2031, unless and 
until terminated as otherwise provided herein. 

B. The Village shall have the option to extend this Agreement for a period of an additional 
one (1) to three (3) years, by providing written notice of the Village's intention not less 
than thirty (30) days prior to its expiration. Any extension hereunder shall rigidly 
adhere to the Agreement, as it exists on the date of the notice to extend; provided, 

however, that prices during the extension shall be mutually agreed upon. 

C. The Contractor agrees to furnish all labor, material and equipment necessary and 
incidental to rendering the aforesaid services. 

D. The Contractor shall undertake to perform all services rendered hereunder in a neat, 
orderly and efficient manner; to use due care and diligence in the performance of said 



4 
 

duties under the terms and provisions of this Agreement; and to provide neat, orderly 

and courteous personnel on its crews. 

E. The Contractor shall remove all material placed for collection which is to be collected 
under this Agreement. The Contractor shall be responsible for removing all such 
material, including spillage on the placement area on private or public property. The 
Contractor shall close all gates both upon entering and leaving premises and shall close 
all lids after emptying containers. The Contractor's personnel shall not cut across rear, 
front or side yards, or flower beds to adjoining premises without permission of the 
owner. 

F. The Contractor shall designate in writing the person to serve as agent to the Contractor 
and liaison between his organization and the Village. The Village may, with proper 
notice given, inspect the Contractor's operations, records and equipment in any manner 
related to this Agreement at any reasonable time and location. 

G. The Contractor shall not subcontract out or assign its duties under this Agreement to a 
subcontractor or an assignee without prior written consent of the Village and said 
consent may be withheld at the Village's sole discretion. 

H. The Village shall separately arrange for the transfer and/or disposal of all Municipal 
Waste collected and transported under this Agreement. 

III. RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION SERVICE 

A. Municipal Waste Collection: 

1. Pursuant to the charges under Article VII, the Contractor shall collect and 
transport, to a facility designated by the Village, all Municipal Waste set out 
for collection in containers approved by the Village when said containers are 
placed for collection in the vicinity of the street curb or alley as designated by 
the Village or in the case of each Condominium structure or complex, at the 
designated “garbage area” located on the premises as specified by Village 
Ordinance. Each Residential Unit and Condominium Family Unit may place 
Bulk Items, not to exceed three cubic-yards per load, per week for collection 
as a part of the regularly scheduled Municipal Waste collection without 
additional cost. The Contractor is not responsible for collection of loose 
materials unless a special pick-up is ordered. 

2. Collection shall occur between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. 

3. The Contractor, at its sole cost, shall provide each single-family, duplex, 
triplex and quad Residential Unit with a Village-approved, 96-gallon 
Municipal Waste Mobile Cart, which shall remain the property of the 
Contractor. Contractor shall replace any carts that are stolen, lost by the 
Contractor, or damaged by wildlife or normal wear-and-tear, at its sole cost. 
Contractor may charge a fee of $60.00 to replace missing Mobile Carts or 
Mobile Carts damaged by resident's negligence or abuse. Under special 
circumstances, and subject to prior written approval by the Village, Residential 
Units may elect to “trade-in” their 96-gallon Mobile Cart for a 64-gallon 
Mobile Cart. In such circumstances, the Contractor shall provide and distribute 



5 
 

said 64-gallon Mobile Carts at its sole cost and expense. 

4. The Contractor shall provide, at its sole cost and expense, each Condominium 
structure or complex with municipal waste dumpsters in adequate quantity and 
of adequate capacity to serve the storage needs of each structure or complex. 

B. Recycling Collection: 

1. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Village in advertising and promoting 
the Recycling Program. The Contractor shall be responsible for developing and 
distributing to every Residential Unit and Condominium Family Unit a 
brochure explaining the Municipal Waste, Recyclable Material, White Goods 
and Landscape Waste programs at no cost to the Village. The Contractor shall 
issue the brochure at least once a year during the term of this Agreement. The 
Village shall have editorial approval over said brochure. 

2. The Contractor shall collect from each Residential Unit and Condominium 
Family Unit the following Recyclable Material: 

a. Newsprint; 

b. Mixed paper which shall include magazines, telephone books, 
catalogs, junk mail (brochures, advertisements, fliers, etc.), computer 
paper, stationery, envelopes, bills, greeting cards and brown paper 
bags; 

c. Corrugated cardboard and chipboard; 

d. Glass, which shall include all types of clear and colored glass bottles, 
jars and containers; 

e. Plastics, which shall include all plastic bottles and containers labeled 
PETE 1, HDPE 2, PVC 3, LDPE 4, PP 5 and OTHER 7, and 6- and 
12- pack plastic beverage rings and carriers; 

f. Aluminum, which shall include all types of aluminum food and 
beverage cans; formed aluminum containers; and aluminum foil; 

g. All types of metal food and beverage cans; 

h. Empty aerosol cans; and 

i. Empty paint cans. 

Additional Recyclable Material may be added to the curbside collection system 
upon mutual written consent of the Village and the Contractor. 

3. Any material placed for collection, which is not specified above or not properly 
prepared shall not be collected: 

a. A “SORRY NOTE” is to be placed on the material or container stating the 
reason the material was not collected. The date, address and reason that 



6 
 

the “SORRY NOTE” was issued shall, at the Village's request, be reported 
to the Village, 

b. The Contractor shall, at its own cost, provide “SORRY NOTES”. 

4. The Contractor, at its sole cost, shall provide each single-family, duplex, triplex 
and quad Residential Unit with a Village-approved, 64-gallon Recyclable Material 
Mobile Cart at the direction of the Village Administrator. The Contractor shall 
replace any carts that are stolen, lost by the Contractor or damaged by wildlife or 
damaged by normal wear-and-tear at Contractor's sole cost. The Contractor may 
charge a fee of $60.00 to replace missing Mobile Carts or Mobile Carts damaged 
by resident's negligence or abuse. The Contractor shall supply each condominium 
building indoor recycling containers suitable for storage under kitchen sinks. The 
Contractor shall supply one container per Condominium Family Unit for 
distribution at the commencement of the Agreement. 

5. Village approved 96-gallon Recyclable Material Mobile Carts shall be provided 
by the Contractor at its sole cost and expense to each condominium structure or 
complex. Contractor shall provide an adequate quantity of 96-gallon Mobile Carts 
to serve the storage needs of each condominium structure or complex. 

6. The Contractor may request changes, modifications or alterations in the manner in 
which residents set out Recyclable Material for collection in order to accommodate 
changes in collection and/or processing technologies. Any such change, 
modification or alteration shall be subject to the Village’s approval. 

C. Landscape Waste Collection: 

1. The Landscape Waste collection season shall be from April 1 to November 30 of 
each year during the term of this Agreement. 

2. The Contractor shall collect unlimited Landscape Waste segregated from other 
materials and packaged as follows: 

a. That is contained within a Village approved 30 gallon or smaller plastic 
container clearly identified for landscape waste only; or 

b. That is contained within Kraft paper bags. 

3. Any Landscape Waste placed for collection not meeting the requirements 
herein shall not be collected. In such an event, the Contractor shall affix 
thereto: 

a. A “SORRY NOTE” to be placed on the material or container stating 
the reason it was not collected. The date, address and reason that the 
“SORRY NOTE” was issued shall, at the Village's request, be reported 
to the Village. 

b. The Contractor shall, at its own cost, provide "SORRY NOTES". 

 



7 
 

D. Subscription Organic Materials Collection: 

1. Contractor shall offer a seasonal (April 1 to November 30), subscription-based 
Organic Materials collection program upon request of a Residential Unit. 
Contractor shall provide a 96-gallon Mobile Organics Cart to each Residential 
Unit subscribing to such service and shall collect such container on a weekly 
basis during the specified season. All service arrangements shall be made 
between Contractor and the subscribing Residential Unit. Contractor shall bill 
each Residential Unit subscribing to such service at the rates specified in 
Exhibit B to this Agreement and all fees shall be paid by the Residential Unit. 
The Village shall not be responsible for payment for any subscription-based 
Organic Materials collection. 

IV. RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 

A. The Contractor shall provide regular collection service once each week on Thursdays 
to each Residential Unit south of Madison Avenue, and once each week on Fridays to 
each Residential Unit north of Madison Avenue. The Contractor shall provide regular 
collection service at least once each week to each condominium structure or complex. 

B. Collection routes shall be established by the Contractor within collection areas which 
shall be designated by the Village. The Contractor shall submit a map designating the 
collection routes to the Village, for its approval, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. The Contractor may, from time to time, propose to the Village 
changes in routes or days of collection, approval for which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. Upon Village's approval of proposed changes, the Contractor shall, at its 
sole cost and expense, promptly give written and adequate notice to the affected 
Residential Unit in a manner approved by the Village, in its sole discretion. 

C. Municipal Waste, Recyclable Material and Landscape Waste shall be collected from 
all Residential Units once each week on the same day and from the same collection 
point. 

D. Special pick-up service for White Goods or for loads in excess of three cubic yards per 
Residential Unit or Condominium Family Unit shall be provided to any Residential 
Units and Condominium Family Units for any type of material collected under this 
Agreement. The Resident shall contact the Contractor regarding special pick-up 
service for any of the wastes or materials collected under this Agreement. Except as 
otherwise expressly contained in this Agreement, cost, container size and pickup 
frequency shall be determined by an agreement between the Contractor and resident. 
Special pick-up service shall be provided within 24 hours after receiving a special pick-
up request, or on the next business day if a Saturday, Sunday or Holiday is within 24 
hours after receiving such request. The Contractor shall provide this service to 
Residential Units on a C.O.D. basis. Condominium Family Units shall receive special 
pick-ups at no charge if the material is from a nonprofessional, “do-it-yourself” project 
and the service is provided on the scheduled service day. Material must be prepared so 
that it can be loaded into the regular collection truck by the driver without assistance. 
Material must be placed in the condominium's regular containers or disposable 
containers provided by the condominium owner. Building material that cannot be 
placed in containers must be bundled. Bundles must not exceed 60 pounds in weight, 
two feet in diameter and four feet in length. The Village shall not be responsible for 



8 
 

payment for any special pick-up services. 

E. The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Village a monthly report accurately 
detailing: 

1. The total weight of the Municipal Waste collected and the location to which it was 
transported; 

2. The weight of Recyclable Materials collected and the facility or facilities to which 
Recyclable Materials have or will be sent; 

3. The value per unit of Recyclable Material, based on publicly-available 
information, the specific vendors accepting each Recyclable Material and other 
non-proprietary information, as may be requested by the Village or the West Cook 
County Solid Waste Agency; 

4. The weight of Landscape Waste collected and the site or sites to which it was 
transported; 

5. The number of White Goods collected, their total weight, and the processing 
facility and disposal site or sites to which they were transported; 

6. Any other data reasonably requested by the Village; and 

7. The fees paid to each facility for each material collected pursuant to this 
Agreement, if requested by the Village; and 

8. The weekly set-out rates and monthly participation rate for the recycling program. 

F. The Contractor shall furnish all services offered under this Agreement free of charge 
to all public buildings under the jurisdiction of the Village during the term of this 
Agreement. Public buildings are listed in Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

G. The Contractor shall, at no charge to the Village, provide Municipal Waste and 
Recyclable Material services to four (4) Village sponsored festivals each year as 
requested by the Village. Festivals will include, but are not limited to, Ribfest and 
Summerfest and last a maximum of two days each. For each such festival the 
Contractor shall supply sufficient Municipal Waste and Recyclable Material containers 
as directed by the Village, collect Recyclable Materials and Municipal Waste from the 
festival(s) and transport those materials to the same facilities as similar materials 
collected from Residential Units. 

H. At the request of the Village, the Contractor shall provide the services offered under 
this Agreement free of charge in emergencies to alleviate threats to the public health, 
safety and welfare and in conjunction with various community events held partially or 
fully on public property, excluding Village sponsored clean-up events. The 
Contractor's obligation to provide collection services under this subsection shall be 
limited to Three Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($3,000.00) per year. Any additional 
costs for said services shall be charged to the Village at the rate listed in Exhibit B to 
this Agreement. 



9 
 

I. In order to protect the public health, safety and welfare and at the request of the Village, 
the Contractor shall collect quantities of Municipal Waste, Recyclable Material, 
Landscape Waste and White Goods left at the street curb or alley without proper 
preparation in unusual circumstances (e.g. evictions or “skip-outs”) and shall bill the 
property owner for the actual cost thereof. The Village agrees to assist the Contractor 
in identifying the property owner(s) for this purpose. 

J. Holidays. The following days shall be considered holidays for purposes of this 
Agreement: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, 
Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day 

Should one of these holidays fall on a regularly scheduled collection day, collection 
shall be one day late after the holiday for the remainder of that week. The Contractor 
shall inform the residents of each change in schedule due to holidays through local 
media. No other change in the weekly schedule shall be allowed without prior written 
consent of the Village. 

K. The Contractor shall provide a local phone number, staffed by an authorized agent, 
between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, to handle 
inquiries and complaints connected with services provided under this Agreement. All 
complaints shall receive prompt and courteous attention from the Contractor. 
Complaints alleging missed collections shall be investigated promptly and, if verified, 
the Contractor shall arrange for collection within twenty-four (24) hours of complaint. 

L. If the Contractor is unable to resolve a complaint in a satisfactory manner within 
seventy-two (72) hours after receipt of a complaint, written notice shall be delivered 
to the Village with the name and address of the resident, date and time of complaint, 
nature of complaint and the Contractor's response. The Village shall intervene, mediate 
the dispute and render a final binding decision. 

M. Services provided by the Contractor shall be performed in a good, workman-like 
manner. 

N. The Contractor shall furnish capable personnel for use in the crews of the Contractor 
performing the services specified in this Agreement. The Contractor shall prohibit any 
drinking of alcoholic beverages or the use of any controlled substance, except by 
doctor's prescription, by its drivers and crew members while on duty or in the course 
of performing their duties under this Agreement. 

In the event that any of the Contractor’s personnel is deemed by the Village to be unfit 
or unsuitable to perform the services under this Agreement as a result of intoxication, 
drug use, incompetence, improper attire, or by the virtue of abusive or obnoxious 
behavior, the Contractor shall immediately remove such person from work within the 
Village and replace that person with a suitable and competent person at no expense to 
the Village. 

O. All Municipal Waste, Landscape Waste or Recyclable Material containers damaged 
by the Contractor shall be repaired or replaced at the sole expense of the Contractor. 

P. The Contractor covenants and agrees to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances 
and regulations in any manner related to the Contractor's rights, duties, obligations or 



10 
 

operations under this Agreement. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain in effect 
all licenses and permits necessary to perform its obligations under this Agreement. 

Q. The Contractor shall collect only such materials as required herein. The Contractor 
shall not collect or transport any Hazardous Waste or any other waste or material which 
the designated transfer station and/or disposal or other facility receiving such waste is 
not permitted to receive. The Contractor shall train its employees to screen the 
materials collected so that nothing restricted from collection by this Agreement is 
collected. 

V. EQUIPMENT 

A. The Contractor shall use modem, enclosed equipment, complete with a hydraulic 
compacting system in the collection of Municipal Waste and Landscape Waste. 

B. Equipment used in performing the services under this Agreement shall be properly 
licensed by the State of Illinois and conform to all applicable safety standards. 

C. The appearance and sanitary condition of collection vehicles and other equipment will 
be maintained to high standards by cleaning, washing, painting and disinfecting as 
necessary. All equipment operated by the Contractor will be in good repair at all times. 

D. The Contractor shall not store, or allow to be stored, any equipment or materials on 
private property except in strict compliance with applicable Village Ordinances. 

VI. CARE AND DISPOSITION OF MATERIALS 

A. All Municipal Waste shall be removed from the Village at the close of each collection 
day and transported to a facility designated by the Village at the Contractor's expense. 
In the event the location of the designated facility changes during the term of this 
Agreement, and upon request for a rate adjustment by either party, the Village and the 
Contractor agree to negotiate a change in the rate for Municipal Waste to reflect the 
Contractor’s actual cost for transporting Municipal Waste.  

B. All Landscape Waste shall be disposed of at a facility designed to treat, compost, grind 
or land apply the waste, unless otherwise authorized by the State of Illinois. 

C. All Recyclable Materials shall be collected, separated and processed to facilitate the 
sale of Recyclable Material to re-manufacturers for post-consumer use. No materials 
collected as Recyclable Material shall be deposited at a landfill or waste incinerator 
without prior written approval of the Village. 

D. The Contractor shall not cause or contribute to litter in the process of making 
collections. 

E. All materials collected by the Contractor shall be so contained, secured or enclosed 
during collection and transportation so that leaking, spilling or blowing is prevented. 

F. The Contractor shall immediately clean up and remediate all litter, blowing debris, 
spills and releases of any material over which it exercises control occurring prior to 
the delivery of the material to its intended destination. 



11 
 

VII. COST OF RESIDENTIAL SERVICES 

A. Standard Municipal Waste Service: 

1. The Village shall bill all Residential Units and Condominium Family Units 
receiving service under this Agreement. The Village shall pay the Contractor 
for services hereunder on a monthly basis by check or wire transfer. Payment 
shall not be made by credit card. 

2. The cost of collection and transportation of Municipal Waste required under 
this Agreement for Residential Units shall be billed at the monthly unit rate 
listed in Exhibit B to this Agreement, with the maximum collection rate of three 
(3) cubic yards weekly. This base monthly cost shall include the weekly 
collection and transportation of one 96-gallon Municipal Waste Mobile Cart 
provided by the Contractor per Residential Unit. A Residential Unit may opt 
for one 64-gallon Municipal Waste Mobile Cart in lieu of the 96-gallon Mobile 
Cart. This rate shall apply to structures containing as many as four Residential 
Units. The cost for the collection and transportation of the Municipal Waste 
contained in each additional 96-gallon Mobile Cart or each additional 64-
gallon Mobile Cart per Residential Unit shall be billed at the rate listed in 
Exhibit B to this Agreement, which shall include the cost of the Contractor 
providing the Residential Unit with the additional Mobile Cart. The Contractor 
shall be responsible, on a monthly basis, for providing the Village with a list 
of all Residential Units requesting an additional Municipal Waste Mobile Cart. 

3. The cost of collection and transportation of Municipal Waste required under 
this Agreement for Condominium Family Units shall be billed at the monthly 
unit rate listed in Exhibit B to this Agreement. 

B. Standard Recycling Service: 

1. The cost of collection and processing Recyclable Material required under this 
Agreement for Residential Units shall be billed at the monthly unit rate listed 
in Exhibit B to this Agreement. This base monthly cost shall include the 
weekly collection and processing of one 64-gallon Recyclable Material Mobile 
Cart provided by the Contractor per Residential Unit. 

2. The cost of collection and processing Recyclable Material required under this 
Agreement for Condominium Family Units shall be billed at the monthly unit 
rate listed in Exhibit B to this Agreement. 

C. Standard Landscape Waste Service: 

1. The cost of Landscape Waste collection, treatment and disposal shall be based 
upon a monthly fee per Residential Property. The Contractor agrees to provide 
unlimited Landscape Waste collection from April 1 through November 30 at the 
year-round monthly per-property rate listed in Exhibit B to this Agreement.  

D. Miscellaneous Cost Provisions: 

1. The parties agree that the number of Residential Units in the Village as of the date 



12 
 

of this Agreement is 3,815. The number of Condominium Family Units is 1,466. 
The Village shall determine the number of Residential Units and Condominium 
Family Units on January first and July first of each year. That determination shall 
govern the relevant provisions of this Agreement. 

a. There are 1,956 single-family residential properties with a total of 1,956 
Residential Units; 

b. There are 598 two-family residential properties with a total of 1,196 
Residential Units; 

c. There are 141 three family residential properties with a total of 423 
Residential Units; 

d. There are 60 four-flat residential properties with a total of 240 Residential 
Units; 

e. There are 82 condominium buildings with a total of 1,466 Condominium 
Family Units. 

2. The Village may designate Residential Units that will be vacant for a period of 
thirty (30) days or more. The Contractor shall not provide service to those 
Residential Units and there shall be no charges therefore. 

3. Roll-off containers for Public Works Municipal Waste and Landscape Waste shall 
be billed by the Contractor to the Village at the per haul rate listed in Exhibit B to 
this Agreement. 

4. The Contractor will collect and transport Bulk Items in excess of three (3) cubic 
yards per week as a Special Pick Up at the cubic yard rate listed in Exhibit B to 
this Agreement for collection. The Contractor will bill the Residential Unit directly 
for this service. 

On or before the fifteenth of each month, the Contractor shall pay to the Village 
that portion of the proceeds the Contractor has collected from the provision of 
special pick-ups for Bulk Items and which relates to the disposal of said Bulk 
Items. That portion of the proceeds is hereby fixed during the term of the 
Agreement as one-third (1/3) the cubic yard rate listed for special pick-ups in 
Exhibit B to this Agreement. 

5. The cost of collection and disposal of White Goods shall be billed at the rate listed 
in Exhibit B to this Agreement for each White Good. The Contractor will bill the 
Residential Unit directly for this service. 

6. The Contractor shall be paid only those costs expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
Any services for which an express cost is not provided shall be performed at the 
Contractor's sole cost and expense. 

7. All fees and expenses due the Contractor under this Agreement are expressly set 
forth herein. Said fees and expenses shall be the full and only amount due and shall 
include without limitation: 



13 
 

a. all applicable taxes and fees; and 

a. the cost of all permits, licenses and all other certifications and approvals 
required by Federal, State and local laws, regulations and ordinances. 

VIII. FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 

A. At the request of the Village, the Contractor shall furnish a year-end financial report 
and a sworn statement from the Chief Operating Officer of the Contractor verifying 
the existence and veracity of the report. 

B. The Contractor shall furnish a Performance Bond for the faithful performance of this 
Agreement, said Performance Bond to be executed by a responsible surety company 
rated A or better by Best's Insurance Reports. The Bond shall be in the penal sum of 
One Hundred Twenty Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($120,000) for the period of this 
Agreement, including any renewal thereof. The Performance Bond shall be 
conditioned upon the faithful performance by the Contractor of its obligations under 
this Agreement and upon its full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and 
regulations. Said Performance Bond shall indemnify the Village against any loss 
resulting from any breach or failure of performance. 

C. Insurance: 

1. The Contractor shall at all times during the pendency of this Agreement maintain 
in full force and effect Employer's Liability, Worker's Compensation, Public 
Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage. 
Certificates or other evidence of such insurance shall be furnished by the 
Contractor to the Village prior to the Contractor entering upon the performance of 
said Agreement. The Contractor shall carry the following types of insurance in at 
least the limits specified below: 

Worker's Compensation Statutory as amended from time to time 

Employer's Liability $500,000.00 

Bodily Injury Liability Except Automobile $2,000,000.00 each occurrence 

Property Damage Liability Except 
Automobile 

$2,000,000.00 each occurrence 

Automobile Bodily Injury Liability $2,000,000.00 each person 
$3,000,000.00 each occurrence 

Automobile Property Damage $2,000,000.00 each occurrence 

Excess Umbrella Liability $5,000,000.00 each occurrence 

 

2. Said insurance policies shall provide that they cannot be canceled without 
thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Village. The Contractor shall furnish 
the Village with certificates evidencing that the insurance provided for herein 
is maintained by the Contractor. The Village shall be named as an additional 
insured on each policy other than workers' compensation. 



14 
 

Further, the Contractor's insurance shall include contractual liability coverage 
of the indemnifications and other potential liabilities under this Agreement. 

3. The Insurance coverage specified herein constitutes the minimum requirement 
and said requirements shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the 
Contractor under the terms of this Agreement, or supersede applicable 
minimum requirements from time to time as set by law. The Contractor shall 
procure and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, any additional kinds and 
amounts of insurance which, in the Contractor's own judgment, may be 
necessary for its proper protection in the prosecution of its duties under this 
Agreement. 

4. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and forever keep and hold harmless, 
the Village, its agents, officials, servants and employees against any and all 
claims for injuries, death, loss, damages, charges, claims of every type, nature 
and description (including without limitation environmental and patent 
claims), suits, liabilities judgments, reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and 
expenses in any manner connected with this Agreement or the services 
rendered hereunder. 

5. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any Performance Bond 
or insurance protection required of the Contractor, or otherwise provided by 
this Agreement, shall in no way limit its responsibility to defend, indemnify, 
keep and hold harmless and defend the Village, its agents, officials, servants 
and employees as hereinabove provided. 

6. The Contractor's duty to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances and 
regulations and to indemnify and insure the Village shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement. 

7. The Contractor agrees that in the event a judgment should be entered against 
the Village or its agents, officials, servants and employees which is in any 
manner connected or related to this Agreement of the services rendered 
hereunder, the Contractor shall immediately satisfy same including, but 
without limitation on the foregoing, all fees, costs and interest in connection 
therewith. 

IX. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

A. The Contractor warrants that it is experienced in each of the areas under which it will 
have duties and obligations under this Agreement and that it has adequate personnel 
and experience to properly and satisfactorily discharge its duties and obligations under 
this Agreement. 

B. The Contractor acknowledges that it is an independent contractor and none of its 
employees, agents or assigns are employees of the Village. The Contractor agrees to 
pay all dues, unemployment, social security, and other taxes required by law or 
contract. 

C. Failure of the Contractor to Perform. 



15 
 

1. All terms and conditions of the Agreement are considered material and the failure 
to perform any of said terms or conditions on the part of the Contractor shall be 
considered a breach of this Agreement. Should the Contractor fail to perform any 
of such terms or conditions, the Village shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement after five (5) days written notice to the Contractor of the violation and 
the failure of the Contractor to remedy the violation within said time. In addition 
to any and all equitable legal remedies available to the Village in the event of a 
breach, the Village shall have the right to call upon the Performance Bond 
described in this Agreement. The remedies provided to the Village herein shall be 
cumulative and not exclusive. No waiver by the Village of a default by the 
Contractor under this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by the Village of 
any subsequent default or failure to perform on the part of the Contractor. 

2. In the event of a failure by the Contractor to provide any of the services required 
under this Agreement for a period of five (5) days following written notice of such 
failure, then the Village, at its sole option and by any means, may take such steps 
as are necessary to furnish services otherwise provided for in this Agreement. Any 
and all expenses incurred by the Village may be charged against the Contractor 
and the Performance Bond furnished by the Contractor. In addition, the Village 
may terminate this Agreement if the failure is not cured within five days following 
written notice. In addition, the Village may elect, in its sole discretion, to seek any 
available legal remedy. 

3. The Contractor shall not be paid whenever it fails to provide any service required 
under this Agreement, even if such failure is caused by events or occurrences of a 
nature commonly known as "force majeure" or acts of God or strikes beyond the 
Contractor's control. 

D. This Agreement is not assignable voluntarily, involuntarily or by process of law, 
without the prior written consent of the Village, which consent may be withheld by the 
Village in its sole discretion. 

E. The Village may immediately terminate this Agreement under the following 
circumstances: 

1. In the event that the Contractor delivers to the designated facility Municipal Waste 
or any other materials which the Contractor is not expressly obligated to collect 
and so deliver under this Agreement. In addition, the Village may withhold all 
sums otherwise due and owing the Contractor and pursue any other remedy 
provided for by this Agreement or otherwise provide by law; and 

2. If Contractor becomes insolvent or fails to meet its financial obligations, short of 
a legal declaration of bankruptcy; and 

3. Filing of bankruptcy by the Contractor and subsequent proceedings thereafter. 

a. If this Agreement has not been previously terminated by the Village, this 
Agreement shall automatically terminate in the event the Contractor shall 
be adjudged bankrupt, either by voluntary or involuntary proceedings, and 
in no event shall this Agreement be, or be treated as, an asset of Contractor 
after adjudication of bankruptcy. 



16 
 

F. The Contractor shall adhere to all applicable Federal, State and local requirements 
governing equal employment opportunities. 

G. Title to Municipal Waste shall pass to the Village when collected by the Contractor. 
Title to and liability for Unacceptable Waste shall at no time pass to Contractor or the 
Village (unless the Village is the generator of such Unacceptable Waste). 

H. Title to Recyclable Materials and Landscape Waste set out for collection shall reside 
in the Village. The Contractor shall market said materials or dispose of these materials 
on behalf of the Village. When the Contractor transports them to a processing, disposal 
or other site (collectively “Disposal Site”) on behalf of the Village, title shall pass to 
the operator of that Disposal Site. If the Disposal Site is paid for taking the materials, 
the cost paid to the Disposal Site shall be paid solely by the Contractor. If money is 
paid to the Contractor for the material, the Contractor shall keep the proceeds and shall 
give an accounting to the Village, quarterly for same. 

I. Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be interpreted according to the laws of the State 
of Illinois. 

J. Change in Law: The Contractor shall promptly notify the Village of any change in 
Federal, State or local law, or regulation, which may significantly affect its ability to 
perform its obligations or will increase the cost of providing the services in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement. If, during the time this Agreement is in effect, 
any State or Federal law or regulatory change increases collection costs, then the 
Contractor and Village agree to negotiate in good faith the rates paid to Contractor 
relating to the services affected by the change in law. 

K. Force Majeure. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, except for 
the Village's obligation to pay amounts due to Contractor for services performed, any 
failure or delay in performance under this Agreement due to contingencies beyond a 
party's reasonable control, including, but not limited to, riots, strikes, terrorist acts, 
compliance with applicable laws or governmental orders, fires, bad weather and acts 
of God, shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

X. NOTICES 

A. Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this Agreement, all notices permitted or 
required to be given by the parties to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed delivered to the addressee when delivered in person on a business day at the 
address set forth below, or on the third business day after being deposited in the United 
States Mail for delivery at the address set forth below, postage prepaid, certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested. 

B. Notices to the Village shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the following address: 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
517 Desplaines Avenue 
Forest Park, Illinois 60130 
Attention: Village Administrator 

 



17 
 

C. Notices to the Contractor shall be addressed to, and delivered at, the following address: 

_________________________ 
_________________________ 
_________________________ 
Attention: _________________ 
 

D. By notice complying with the requirements of this Article, each party shall have the 
right to change the address or addressee or both for all future notices to such party. 

XI. MEDIATION 

A. Except as set forth below, any dispute, controversy or claim between the Contractor 
and the Village arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall 
be settled by a dispute resolution process offered by the West Central Municipal 
Conference. If such a dispute resolution process is unavailable, the Village shall select 
a commercial mediation service with which the parties will cooperate in settling the 
dispute. The commercial mediation service's fee shall be paid by the parties in equal 
shares. The parties may apply to the courts for judicial relief, only after such alternative 
dispute resolution or mediation process has been carried on or attempted. Nothing in 
this paragraph shall be interpreted as otherwise limiting the rights of parties to apply 
for judicial relief. 

B. No dispute, controversy or claim regarding any change in rate, fees or the structure 
thereof shall be subject to mediation or alternative dispute resolution. 

C. Any request for an increase, adjustment or other change in the rate structure as 
provided for herein shall be negotiated exclusively between the parties. If the parties 
fail to reach agreement, the Village may declare the Agreement terminated upon ninety 
(90) days prior written notice. 

XII. TERMS 

A. The provisions of this Agreement shall be interpreted whenever possible to sustain 
their legality and enforceability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, in whole or 
in part, neither the validity of the remaining part of such provision, nor the validity of 
any other provisions of this Agreement, shall be in any way affected thereby. 

B. The parties acknowledge that the headings contained in this Agreement are provided 
for convenience only and are not intended to affect its interpretation. 

C. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and there are no 
other understandings or agreements, oral or written, between the parties with respect 
to the services to be provided, and the rate and charges therefore. 

D. No modification, addition, deletion, revision, alteration, or other change to this 
Agreement shall be effective unless and until such change is reduced to writing and 
executed and delivered by the authorized representatives of the Village and the 
Contractor. 



18 
 

E. Contractor Certifications attached hereto as Attachment C and made a part hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Contractor has caused this Agreement to be executed with its 
corporate seal affixed thereto, by its duly authorized corporate officials acting pursuant to authority 
granted by its Board of Directors. The Village has caused this Agreement to be executed by its Village 
Mayor and Village Clerk acting pursuant to authority granted by its Village Council, all on the day 
and year first written above. 

VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 

By (signature):  

Printed Name:  

Title:  

Attest:  

By (signature):  

Printed Name:  

Title:  

CONTRACTOR 

By (signature):  

Printed Name:  

Title:  

Attest:  

By (signature):  

Printed Name:  

Title  

 

  



19 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

PUBLIC BUILDINGS SERVED 

 
The Municipal Complex (Village Hall) 
Two 2-yard containers (garbage) 
517 Des Plaines Avenue 
 
Community Center 
One 2-yard container (garbage) 
7640 Jackson 
 
Village Public Works Facility 
Two 6-yard containers (garbage) 
7343 15th Street 
 
Altenheim / The Grove 
Twenty 96-gallon carts (garbage), and three 64-gallon carts (recycling) 
7824 Madison 
 
Fire Department 
One 2-yard container (garbage) 
7625 Wilcox 
 
  



20 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

FEE SCHEDULE 

 

BASE PROPOSAL 

 
Year 1 

5/1/26 – 4/30/27 
Year 2 

5/1/27 – 4/30/28 
Year 3 

5/1/28 – 4/30/29 
Year 4 

5/1/29 – 4/30/30 
Year 5 

5/1/30 – 4/30/31 

Residential Units (1-4 units) 

Municipal Waste: 96-gal Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Recyclable Material: 64-gal Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Landscape Waste 
(monthly rate per property) 

     

Additional 64-Gallon Trash Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Additional 96-Gallon Trash Cart 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Subscription Organics Cart* 
(annual rate per unit) 

     

Special Collection Pick-up* 
(rate per cubic yard) 

     

White Goods* 
(each) 

     

Condominium Family Units 

Municipal Waste: Dumpsters 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Recyclable Material: 96-gal Carts 
(monthly rate per unit) 

     

Other Services 

Roll-offs (20 cu yd) 
(price per haul) 

     

Emergency Services 
(hourly rate) 

     

Notes: 
1. * Special Collection Pick-up, White Goods and Subscription Organic Materials Collection fees to be billed by Contractor to 

resident. 
2. Landscape Waste is monthly rate per property (e.g., duplex charged as one property and not two units). Monthly rate is charged 

to Village year-round. 
3. All Municipal Waste monthly fees are for collection and transport (only) to a designated RDP transfer station. Village will pay 

RDP disposal costs. 
4. Roll-off service to be quoted as price per haul to a designated RDP transfer station. Village will pay RDP disposal costs. 
3. Emergency Services is hourly rate charged by Contractor after $3,000 annual free allotment exceeded. 

 
 
  



21 
 

ATTACHMENT C 

CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
The assurances hereinafter made by (Company Name) authorized to do business in the State 

of Illinois (hereinafter the “Contractor”) are each a material representation of fact upon which reliance 
is placed by the Village of Forest Park, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter the “Village”) in entering 
into the Agreement with the Contractor. The Village may terminate the Agreement if it is later 
determined that the Contractor rendered a false or erroneous assurance. 

I, (Name of Person Certifying), hereby certify that I am the (Office of Person Certifying) of 
Contractor and as such hereby represent and warrant to the Village, that the Contractor and its shareholders 
holding more than five percent (5%) of the outstanding shares of the corporation, its officers and directors 
are: 

 
(A) not delinquent in the payment of taxes to the Illinois Department of Revenue in accordance 

with 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1; 
 
(B) not barred from contracting as a result of a violation of either Section 33E-3 (bid rigging) 

or 33E-4 (bid-rotating) of the Criminal Code of 1961 (720 ILCS 5/33E-3 and 5/33E-4); 
 
(C) not in default, as defined in 5 ILCS 385/2, on an educational loan, as defined in SILCS 

385/1; 
 
In addition, the Contractor hereby represents and warrants to the Village, that: 

 
(A) the Contractor, pursuant to 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq. (“Drug-Free Workplace Act”), will 

provide a drug-free workplace by: 
 

(1) Publishing a statement: 
 

a. Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance including 
cannabis, is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace; 

 
b. Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations 

of such prohibition; 
 
c. Notifying the employee that, as a condition of employment on such 

Contract, the employee will; 
 

i. Abide by the terms of the statement; 
 
ii. Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a 

violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days 
after such conviction; 

 
(2) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 

 
a. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
 
b. the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 



22 
 

c. any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 
program; and 

 
d. the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations; 
 

(3) Making it a requirement to give a copy of the statement required by Subsection 
(A)(l) to each employee engaged in the performance of the Contract, and to post 
the statement in a prominent place in the workplace; 

 
(4) Notifying the Village within ten (10) days after receiving notice under paragraph 

(A)(l)(c) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction 
relating to an employee that performs services for the Village; 

 
(5) Imposing a sanction on, or requiring the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse 

assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so convicted, as 
required by 30 ILCS 580/5; 

 
(6) Assisting employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling 

treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicating that a trained referral team 
is in place; 

 
(7) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 

implementation of this section; 
 

(B) the Contractor has not excluded and will not exclude from participation in, denied the 
benefits of, subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment to any person in 
connection with any activity funded under the contract on the basis of race, color, age, 
religion, national origin, disability, or sex; 

 
(C) no Village officer, spouse or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any 

Village officer or trust in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village 
officer or a beneficiary is a holder of any interest in the Contractor; or, if the Contractor's 

stock is traded on a nationally recognized securities market, that no Village officer, spouse 
or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or trust in 
which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a beneficiary 
is a holder of more than one percent (1%) of the Contractor, but if any Village officer, 
spouse or dependent child of a Village officer, agent on behalf of any Village officer or 
trust in which a Village officer, the spouse or dependent child of a Village officer or a 
beneficiary is a holder of less than one percent (1%) of such Contractor, the Contractor has 
disclosed to the Village in writing the name(s) of the holder of such interest; 

 
(D) no officer or employee of the Village has solicited any gratuity, discount, entertainment, 

hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item having monetary value 
including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and honoraria for speaking engagements 
related to or attributable to the government employment or the official position of the 
employee or officer from the Contractor in violation of the Village Code of the Village of 
Forest Park; 

 
(E) the Contractor has not given to any officer or employee of the Village any gratuity, 

discount, entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other tangible or intangible item 
having monetary value including, but not limited to, cash, food and drink, and honoraria 



23 
 

for speaking engagements related to or attributable to the government employment or the 
official position of the employee or officer in violation of the Village Code of the Village 
of Forest Park; 

 
(F) neither the Contractor nor any of its principals, shareholders, members, partners, or 

affiliates, as applicable, is a person or entity named as a Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person (as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224) and that the Contractor 
is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of a Specially Designated National and 
Blocked Person and that the Contractor and its principals, shareholders, members, partners, 
or affiliates, as applicable, are not, directly or indirectly, engaged in, and are not facilitating, 
the transactions contemplated by this Contract on behalf of any person or entity named as 
a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person; and 

 
(G) the Contractor acknowledges that, pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Freedom of 

Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), documents or records prepared or used in relation 
to work performed under this Contract are considered a public record of the Village; and 

therefore, within thirty (30) days of completion of the work required of the Contractor 
under this Contract, the Contractor shall produce to the Village, in electronic format, all 
records that directly relate to the governmental function performed by the Contractor under 
this Contract at no additional cost to the Village; and furthermore, the Contractor shall 

review its records and promptly produce to the Village any additional records in the 
Contractor's possession which the Village requires in order to properly respond to a request 
made pursuant to the Illinois Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1 et seq.), and the 
Contractor shall produce to the Village such records within three (3) business days of a 
request for such records from the Village at no additional cost to the Village. 

 
 If any certification made by the Contractor or term or condition in the Agreement changes, the 
Contractor shall notify the Village of Forest Park in writing within seven (7) days. 
 

CONTRACTOR 

By (signature):  

Printed Name:  

Title:  

Date:  

 
 
Notary public: 
 
Subscribed and sworn before me this _______________ day of _______________, 202__. 
 
Signature: ________________________________ 
 
Seal: 



 

APPENDIX E. SERVICE AREA MAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

  



 

APPENDIX F. CONDOMINIUM BUILDINGS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR 

MUNICIPAL WASTE, RECYCLING AND LANDSCAPE WASTE 

COLLECTION SERVICES 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 

CONDOMINIUM BUILDINGS 

Address # Units Address # Units 

235 Marengo  98 205 Circle  12 

7753 VanBuren  70 1101 Harlem  12 

7757 VanBuren  70 926 Dunlop  11 

850 Desplaines Ave  68 424 Elgin  11 

310 Lathrop  67 33 Rockford  11 

320 Circle  62 7444 Washington  10 

211 Elgin  60 7740 Harvard  10 

7443 Washington  50 416 Marengo  9 

7449 Washington  48 313 Elgin  9 

314 Lathrop  48 122 Circle  9 

115 Marengo  45 502 Beloit  9 

7432 Washington  43 517-33 Grove Lane  9 

7314 Randolph  42 316 Marengo  9 

215 Marengo  40 539 Jackson  9 

7428 Washington  40 238-52 Elgin  8 

140 Marengo  36 7410 Dixon  8 

146-48 Circle  34 601-15 Grove Lane  8 

227 Elgin  33 600-14 Grove Lane  8 

7320 Dixon  32 501-15 Grove Lane  8 

500 Beloit  30 812 Thomas  7 

7200 Adams  22 617-29 Grove Lane  7 

7635 Jackson  21 616-628 Grove Lane  7 

600 Elgin  20 1100 Hannah  6 

32 Elgin  18 230 Circle  6 

1539 Harlem  18 839 Lathrop  6 

1533 Harlem  17 837 Lathrop  6 

7233 Randolph  16 520-30 Grove Lane  6 

234 Circle  13 533 Jackson  6 

7301 Dixon  12 1225 Elgin  5 

7240 Franklin  12 309 Elgin  5 

7240 Dixon  12 329 Marengo  5 

1130 Dunlop  12 142-6 Rockford  5 

 
Total Unit Count: 1,466 
Total Property Count: 82 



1351558_1  

RESOLUTION NO. R-___________-26 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING THE EXECUTION  
OF A COPS HIRING GRANT BY AND BETWEEN THE  

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE (“DOJ”) AND THE VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village of Forest Park (“Village”) has made application for and has been 

awarded a COPS Hiring Grant from the DOJ in the amount of Three Hundred Seventy-Five 

Thousand Dollars ($375,000.00) (“Grant”); and 

WHEREAS, the Village deems it advisable, necessary and in public interest that the 

Village approve, confirm and ratify the acceptance of the Grant.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, 

Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. The facts and statements contained in the preamble clauses to this 

Resolution are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this Resolution. 

 Section 2. Acceptance of the Grant, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a 

part hereof as Exhibit A and on file with the office of the Village Clerk, is hereby approved, and 

the prior execution thereof by the Village Administrator, or her designee, is hereby ratified, and 

the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of approval of same. 

 Section 3. The officials, officers and employees of the Village are hereby authorized 

to take such further actions and execute such documents as are necessary to perform the 

Agreement and carry out the purpose and intent of this Resolution and the Grant. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval in accordance with law. 



1351558_1  

 RESOLVED by the Council of the Village of Forest Park, Cook County, Illinois, this 12th 

day of January, 2026. 

AYES:  ____________________ 
 
NAYS:  ____________________ 
 
ABSENT:  __________________ 
 
 APPROVED by me this 12th day of January, 2026. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
       Rory E. Hoskins, Mayor 
ATTESTED and Filed in my office, 
and published in pamphlet form 
this _______ day of January, 2026. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Megan Roach, Deputy Village Clerk 
 



1351558_1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Grant 
 
 



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  



1351558_1  

 


	011226 Agenda
	Tax levy 12-15-25 Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING TO APPROVE A PROPOSED
	PROPERTY TAX LEVY INCREASE FOR THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	FOR 2025
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING DECEMBER 15, 2025
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.
	Mayor Hoskins called the public hearing to order at 6:45 p.m. and stated that the purpose of the hearing was to receive public comments regarding the proposed tax levy ordinance for 2025.
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	Megan Roach

	minutes 121525.pdf
	THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS
	HELD ON MONDAY EVENING, DECEMBER 15, 2025
	ROLL CALL
	Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins answered the Roll Call.
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	APPROVAL OF BILLS:
	AYES: Commissioners Maxham, Nero, Melin-Rogovin, Voogd and Mayor Hoskins
	NAYES: None

	October report 25 Forest Park Fire Department
	November Report 25 Forest Park Fire Department
	December Report 25 Forest Park Fire Department
	January 12 2026 Bills by Resolution
	01.12.2026 Resolution.pdf
	January 12 2026 Bills by Resolution.pdf

	011226 VA Agenda Memo
	1 Forest Park Ordinance waiving bid, ratifying and authorizing the acceptance of a quote with MES, Inc. for the purchase of new self-contained breathing apparatu.pdf
	APPROVED:
	ATTEST:

	2 Parking Payboxes Disposal Ordinance.pdf
	VILLAGE OF FOREST PARK, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS ORDINANCE NO. O -  - 26

	3A Forest Park Resolution authorizing issuance of request for proposals for residential municipal waste, recycling and landscape waste collection services(1351565..pdf
	3B Village of Forest Park, Solid Waste RFP, Draft 01-06-26
	4 Forest Park Resolution approving and ratifying the execution of a COPS Hiring Grant with the U.S. Department of Justice(1351558.1).pdf



